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Copies of the above documents may also be obtained at the Registered Office of Ziqitza Health Care Limited, between 
Monday to Friday between 9:00 am to 5:00 pm, up to the date of the meeting or by email to the director/ authorised 
representative of Ziqitza Health Care Limited at Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West Mumbai, 
Mumbai City, Maharashtra – 400013 at m.easwaran@murgency.com 
 

BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH - V 
 
 
 
 
 

In the Matter of The Companies Act, 2013 And; 
In the Matter of Sections 230 - 232 of The Companies Act, 2013; And 

In the Matter of Scheme of Arrangement Between 
Ziqitza Health Care Limited (Demerged Company); And 

Zenplus Private Company (Resulting Company) 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Ziqitza Health Care Limited       
A Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956-   
Having its Registered Office at Sunshine Tower,  
23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West Mumbai,  
Mumbai City, Maharashtra – 400013, India     
CIN: U85110MH2002PLC138005              ………  Demerged Company 
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FORM NO. CAA. 2 
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and Rules 6 and 7]  

CA(CAA) 128/MB/2023 
Ziqitza Health Care Limited … Demerged Company  

NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF ZIQITZA HEALTH CARE LIMITED 
CONVENED AS PER THE DIRECTIONS OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH 

- V 

To, 

The Unsecured Creditors of Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

Notice is hereby given that by an Order dated 27.07.2023  read with Order dated 22.08.2023 (collectively referred 
as “Orders”) , the Mumbai Bench – V of the National Company Law Tribunal has directed a meeting of the unsecured 
creditors of the Ziqitza Health Care Limited for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without 
modification(s), the Scheme of Arrangement between Ziqitza Health Care Limited (“Demerged Company”) and 
Zenplus Private Limited (“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders involving demerger of Demerged 
Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from Demerged Company to Resulting Company, pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), and any other applicable provisions of the Act (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) (the “Scheme”). 

TAKE NOTICE that the following resolution is proposed for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving 
with or without modification, the Scheme: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules thereto (including any modifications, amendment or re-enactment 
thereof) and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and 
subject to the requisite approval of the NCLT Mumbai Bench and such other competent authority as may be 
applicable, the Scheme of Arrangement between Ziqitza Health Care Limited (Demerged Company)and Zenplus 
Private Limited (Resulting Company) laid before the meeting be and is hereby approved.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution and for removal of any 
difficulties or doubts, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, be and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, expedient, usual or proper, and 
to settle any questions or difficulties or doubts that may arise, including passing of such accounting entries and /or 
making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary to give effect to the above resolution, 
settling of any questions or difficulties arising under the Scheme or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation 
of the Scheme or implementation thereof or in any matter whatsoever connected therewith, or to review the position 
relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those, and to do all 
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient for bringing the Scheme into effect or to carry 
out such modification(s)/direction(s) as may be required and/or imposed and/or permitted by the NCLT while 
sanctioning the Scheme, or by any governmental authorities, or to approve withdrawal (and where applicable, re-
filing) of the Scheme at any stage for any reason including in case any changes and/or modifications are 
suggested/required to be made in the Scheme or any condition suggested, required or imposed, whether by any 
shareholder, creditor, the NCLT, and/or any other authority, are in its view not acceptable to Demerged Company, 
and/or if the Scheme cannot be implemented otherwise, and to do all such acts, deeds and things as it may deem 
necessary and desirable in connection therewith and incidental thereto.” 

In pursuance of the said Orders and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of unsecured 
creditors of the Demerged Company will be held on Thursday, October 19, 2023 at Social Service League, 
2R4Q+6G4, Jagannath Bhatankar Marg, Parel East, Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400012 at 6:00 P.M. 
(“Tribunal Convened Meeting”), at which place, date and time, the unsecured creditors are requested to attend. 

Unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company entitled to attend and vote at the Tribunal Convened Meeting, may 
vote in person or by proxy or through, provided that all proxies / authorized representative authorizations in the 
prescribed form are deposited at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company at Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra – 400013 not later than 48 hours before the 
aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting. 

A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement under section 102 read with sections 230 to 232 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and details & information as required under Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Merger Rules”), Reports adopted by the Board 
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of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company explaining the effect of Scheme on key 
managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter Shareholders, Audited Financial Statements of the Demerged 
Company as on March 31, 2022, Supplementary Unaudited Financial Statements of the Demerged Company and 
the Resulting Company for the period ended on March 31, 2023 along with the Certificates issued by the auditors of 
the Companies confirming the Accounting Treatment proposed in the Scheme, a form of Proxy and attendance slip 
are forming part of this notice. Further, the above documents can be obtained free of charge at the Registered Office 
of the Demerged Company. 

The NCLT has appointed Mr. Shaffi Mather, Director of the Demerged Company, as the Chairperson and M/s M.V. 
Ghelani & Company, Chartered Accountants, as the Scrutinizer of the said Tribunal Convened Meeting. The 
abovementioned Scheme, if approved at the Tribunal Convened Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval 
of the NCLT. 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
Ms. Manjula Easwaran 

Authorized Signatory 
Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Mr. Shaffi Mather 

Chairperson appointed for the 
meeting 

  

Dated: 05.09.2023 

 

 

 



 
NCLT Convened Meeting-Unsecured Creditors 

5  

Notes: 

a) An unsecured creditor entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy / proxies / authorized 
representative to attend and vote instead of himself / herself and such a proxy / proxies / authorized representative 
so appointed need not be an unsecured creditor of the Demerged Company. The form of proxy and / or letter of 
authority along with board resolution in case of corporate creditor duly completed should, however, be received by 
the Demerged Company at its registered office not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the aforesaid meeting. 

b) All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed. 

c) A minor cannot be appointed as a proxy. 

d) The proxy who is blind or incapable of writing will be accepted if such unsecured creditor has attached his/her 
signature or mark thereto in presence of a witness who has signed the proxy form and added his/her description 
and address, provided that all insertions have been made by the witness at the request and in the presence of the 
unsecured creditor before the witness attached his/her signature or mark. 

e) The proxy of an unsecured creditor who does not know English may be accepted if it is executed in the manner 
prescribed in Noted above, and the witness certifies that it was explained to the unsecured creditor in the language 
known to him/her and gives the unsecured creditor’s name in English below the signature. 

f) Unsecured Creditor / Authorized Representative / Proxy is requested to bring its valid ID (i.e., a PAN Card/ Aadhaar 
Card/ Passport/ Driving License/ Voter ID Card) for easy identification for the attendance of the meeting and produce 
the attendance slip, duly completed and signed, at the entrance of the meeting venue. 

g) The notice is being sent to all the unsecured creditors whose names are appearing in the Certificate given by the, 
Motani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, certifying the list of unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company 
as on 23.03.2023, as had been filed with the NCLT in Company Application No. CAA/No 128/MB/2023. The names 
of the unsecured creditors, as appearing on the said list, shall be entitled to be present and vote at the meeting. A 
person/ entity who is not an unsecured creditor on such date should treat the notice for information purposes only. 

h) The notice convening the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting has been published through advertisement on 
Saturday, September 02, 2023 in the “Financial Express” newspaper in English language and Marathi translation 
thereof in “Loksatta” newspaper indicating the day, date, place and time of the Tribunal Convened Meeting and 
stating that the copies of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement and the form of proxy shall be provided free of 
charge at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company. 

i) The Authorised Representative of a body corporate which is an unsecured creditor of the Demerged Company may 
attend and vote at the meeting provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors under Section 
113 of the Companies Act, 2013 or other governing body of such body corporate authorizing such representative to 
attend and vote at the meeting is deposited at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company not less than 48 
hours before the time fixed for the aforesaid meeting. 

j) In terms of the directions contained in the Order dated 27.07.2023, the quorum for the Tribunal Convened Meeting 
shall be as per section 103 of the Act i.e. 5 unsecured creditors present personally at the meeting since number of 
unsecured creditors of Demerged Company is less than 1000. Further, in case the aforesaid quorum for the Tribunal 
Convened Meeting is not present at 6:00 P.M., then the Tribunal Convened Meeting shall be adjourned by 30 
minutes and thereafter, the Unsecured creditors, present and voting, shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. For 
the purposes of computing the quorum, the valid proxies and authorized representatives shall also be considered. 

k) All documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement will be available for inspection at the Demerged 
Company’s Registered Office between 09:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and 
Public Holidays) till the date of the Tribunal Convened Meeting and at the venue of Tribunal Convened Meeting on 
the date of the Tribunal Convened meeting. 

l) The voting rights of the unsecured creditors shall be in proportion to the outstanding amount due to them by the 
Demerged Company as on 23.03.2023. 

m) Incomplete, unsigned, improperly or incorrectly tick marked, defaced, torn, mutilated, over-written, wrongly-signed 
ballot forms will be rejected. 
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n) M/s M,V. Ghelani & Co has been  appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the entire voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. The scrutinizer will submit a consolidated report to the Chairperson of the Tribunal Convened 
Meeting after scrutinizing the voting made by unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company. 

o) Route map to the venue of the Tribunal convened meeting is published in this notice. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230(3) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 
RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 

1. Pursuant to an Order dated July 27th, 2023 read with Order dated August 22nd, 2023, passed by the Mumbai Bench of the 
National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) in the Company Application No. CA (CAA) No. 128/MB/2023 (collectively 
referred as “Orders”), a meeting of the unsecured creditors of Ziqitza Health Care Limited(“Demerged 
Company”) is being convened at Social Service League, 2R4Q+6G4, Jagannath Bhatankar Marg, Parel East, 
Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400012, on Thursday, October 19th, 2023 at 06:00 P.M. IST (“Tribunal Convened 
Meeting”) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with  or without modification, the Scheme 
of Arrangement between the Ziqitza Health Care Limited and Zenplus Private Limited (“Resulting Company”) 
and their respective shareholders involving demerger of Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from 
Demerged Company to Resulting Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”), and any other applicable provisions of the Act, as applicable (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with the rules issued thereunder (the 
“Scheme”). A copy of the Scheme is enclosed as Annexure 1. 

2. A copy of the Scheme setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the Scheme, providing for the proposed 
Scheme of Arrangement between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company has been approved at 
the meeting of the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company held on 24.03.2023. 

3. In terms of the directions contained in the Order dated 27.07.2023, the quorum for the Tribunal Convened Meeting 
of Demerged Company shall be as per section 103 of the Act i.e. 5 unsecured creditors in number personally 
present at the meeting. Further, in case the aforesaid quorum for the Tribunal Convened Meeting of Demerged 
Company is not present at 6:00 pm, then the Meeting shall be adjourned by 30 minutes and thereafter, the 
unsecured creditors, present and voting, shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. For the purposes of computing 
the quorum, the valid proxies and authorized representatives shall also be considered. 

4. The Demerged Company has filed the Scheme and copy of the notice with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. 

5. Details as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules 

(i) Details of the Orders of the NCLT directing the calling, convening and conducting of the Meeting: 

Particulars Ziqitza Health Care Limited Zenplus Private Limited 
No of Equity Shareholders 26 1 
Reason for Dispensation Meeting Called Consent Received 
No. of Secured Creditors 6 Nil 
Reason for Dispensation Consents Received No secured creditors 
No. of Unsecured Creditors 901 Nil 
Reason for Dispensation Meeting Called No unsecured creditors 

Please refer to paragraph no. 1 of this Explanatory Statement for date of the Order and the day, date, time and 
venue of the Tribunal Convened Meeting. 

(ii) Details of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company: 

Particulars Ziqitza Health Care Limited Zenplus Private Limited 
Corporate Identification 

Number 
U85110MH2002PLC138005 U85300MH2022PTC386830 

Permanent Account 
Number 

AAACZ1733C AACCZ0147J 

Date of Incorporation November 27, 2002 July 15, 2022 
Type of Company Public Private 

Registered Address Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar 
West Mumbai, Mumbai City, 
Maharashtra – 400013, India 

Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Dadar West Mumbai, 

Mumbai City, Maharashtra – 
400013, India 

Name of stock exchange 
where shares of the 
company are listed 

Unlisted Unlisted 

Change of Registered 
Office 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 
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Authorized Share Capital 8,25,00,000 10,00,000 
Issued Share Capital 43,15,900 1,00,000 

Date of Board Meeting 
where the Scheme was 

approved 

March 24, 2023 March 24, 2023 

 

(iii) Other Particulars of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger 
Rules: 

 Summary of the main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried on 
by the Demerged Company and Resulting Company 

1 Ziqitza Health 
Care Limited  

To carry, assist or engage in and undertake the business/profession/activity of setting 
up, maintaining and managing Hospitals (including ICU/ICCU facility, Critical Care 
Unit and Emergency Care facilities, Tele-medicine/Tele medical consultancy), clinic, 
First Aid Center, Mobile Medical Unit of all permitted types such as Mobile Dialysis 
Unit, etc., Dispensaries, Veterinary Hospitals, Pathology Laboratories, Nursing 
Homes, Health Care Units, Fitness Centers, Gymnasiums, Maternity Homes, 
Pharmaceutical Drug/Medical Stores, Medical Diagnostic Centers, Medical Research 
Centers, Physiotherapy centers, Blood Banks, Eye Banks, First Aid Centers, 
Rehabilitation Centers for curing addiction to smoking alcohol and drugs Food/ 
Consumables quality Testing Centers, Obesity Curing Centers, Massage Centers, 
Cosmetic Surgery Centers, public safety services, Fire rescue services, natural 
calamity rescue services, provide fire prevention and suppression Rescue services, 
running Ambulance, Emergency Medical Services (EMS), marketing and selling of 
Health Care Plans, Health Services and product, establish/run/promote, medical and 
healthcare education and management training including in the fields of medicine, 
nursing, physical medicine and rehabilitative medicine, pharmacy and allied medical 
and related business or activity in India or abroad. 

2 Zenplus 
Private 
Limited 

To carry, assist or engage in and undertake the business/profession/activity of setting 
up, maintaining and managing Hospitals (including ICU/ICCU facility, Critical Care 
Unit and Emergency Care facilities, Tele-medicine/Tele medical consultancy), clinic, 
First Aid Center, Mobile Medical Unit of all permitted types such as Mobile Dialysis 
Unit, etc., Dispensaries, Veterinary Hospitals, Pathology Laboratories, Nursing 
Homes, Health Care Units, health check-up center or camps, Fitness Centers, 
Gymnasiums, Maternity Homes, Pharmaceutical Drug/Medical Stores, Medical 
Diagnostic Centers on Site or through collection of samples from patient location, 
Medical Research Centers, Physiotherapy centers, Blood Banks, Eye Banks, First Aid 
Centers, Rehabilitation Centers for curing addiction to smoking alcohol and drugs 
Food/ Consumables quality Testing Centers, Obesity Curing Centers, Massage 
Centers, Cosmetic Surgery Centers, public safety services, Fire rescue services, 
natural calamity rescue services, provide fire prevention and suppression Rescue 
services, running Ambulance, Emergency Medical Services (EMS), marketing and 
selling of Health Care Plans, Health Services and product, establish/run/ 
promote/manage, medical and healthcare education and training centres for medical, 
healthcare and allied industries for development and enhancement of vocational and 
non-vocational skills including in the fields of medicine, nursing, physical medicine 
and rehabilitative medicine, pharmacy and allied medical and related business or 
activity in India or abroad 

 Details of the Directors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company along with their addresses: 

S. No. Company Name Directors Address 

1 
Ziqitza Health Care 
Limited 

Shaffi Mather 
DIN: 00755637  

Mather Estate, Thevakkal, V.K.C.P.O 
Ernakulam - 682021 

Narayana 
Kurup Asokan 
DIN:01348861 

13F, White Waters 1, Pandit Karuppan Road, 
Thevara, P.O. Ernakulam, 682013 
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Bijou Kurien 
DIN: 01802995 

33-2, Grant Road, Bengaluru, 560001 

Prem Kumar 
Varma 
DIN: 06567952 

No 4, Kings Brook Villas, Inchackal Road, 
Maradu, P.O. Ernakulam - 682304  

Mani Palvesan 
DIN: 06732071 

F206, 2nd Floor, G Block, Aparna Cyberlife, 
Nallagandla, Rangareddy - 500019 

Preeti Reddy   
DIN: 07248280 

2703, Bombay Springs, G D Ambekar Marg, 
Dadar (E), Mumbai 400014 

2 
Zenplus Private 
Limited 

Manjula 
Easwaran 
DIN: 07178195 
 

P-1704, Srishti Heights, Mayuresh Srishti 
Complex, LBS Road, Bhandup W, Mumbai - 
400078 

Surendra 
Agarwal 
DIN: 09674772 

C-603, Glory Vasant Marvel, Off W Exp, HWY, 
Borivali (E), Mumbai 400066  

Dipesh 
Nalinkumar 
Shah 
DIN: 09165993 

A-203 RNA Regency Park, Maharashtra Nagar, 
Hindustan Naka, Kandivali (W), Mumbai 
400067 

 

 Details of the Promoters of Demerged Company and Resulting Company along with their addresses: 

S.No Company Name  Name of Promoter Address 
1 Ziqitza Health 

Care Limited 
Mr. Shaffi Mather Mather Estate, Thevakkal, V.K.C.P.O Ernakulam 

  M/s. Mather & Co Mather Square, C Block, 2nd Floor,  
Opp North Railway Station, 
Cochin – 682018 

  M/s. MUrgency Global 
Services Pvt Ltd 

401, B Niranjan Building, 99, Marine Drive 
Kalbadevi, P.O. Mumbai 400002 
 

  Manish Sacheti 24, Kavi Apartments, R G Thadani Marg 
Worli, Mumbai 400018 

  Neeta Sacheti 24, Kavi Apartments, R G Thadani Marg 
Worli, Mumbai 400018 

  Chandra Sacheti 24, Kavi Apartments, R G Thadani Marg 
Worli, Mumbai 400018 

  Naresh Jain 601-602, Vastu Heights, Sundervan  
Complex, Lokhandwala, Andheri (W) 
Mumbai 400051 

  Richa Jain 601-602, Vastu Heights, Sundervan  
Complex, Lokhandwala, Andheri (W) 
Mumbai 400051 

  Mangal Laxmi Consultant 
Pvt Ltd 

1/29, HANS Complex, Ajmer Road,  
Bewar, - 305901 

  Ravi Krishna Godrej Platinum-B2, Apt:2203, Vikhroli East, 
Mumbai – 400079, Maharashtra 

  Nisha Purshothaman 1 North Bridge Road, 24-02 High Street Center
Singapore - 179094 

  Grand Global Impex Pte 
Ltd 

1 North Bridge Road, 24-02 High Street Center
Singapore - 179094 

  Empee Holding Limited Empee Tower, 59, Adithanar Salai, Pudupet,  
Chennai - 600002 

2 Zenplus 
Private Limited 

Ziqitza Health Care 
Limited 

Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, Senapati 
Bapat Marg, Dadar West Mumbai, Mumbai 
City, Maharashtra – 400013 

 

 None of the Directors have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in Demerged 
Company. 
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 The above Directors (who were directors on date of board meeting) of the Demerged Company and Resulting 
Company were present in their respective board meetings dated March 24, 2023 wherein they had approved 
the Scheme of amalgamation and voted in favour of the scheme. 

 Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons: 

 

S. 

No. 

Category of 
Stakeholder 

Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders 

1.  Shareholders Pursuant to the Scheme, shares shall be issued to the shareholders of 
the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company as per the swap ratio 
determined by the valuation report dated 22.03.2023 issued by Kzen 
Valtech Private Limited. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and 
subject to the above provisions, the shareholders of the Demerged 
Company as on the Specified Date shall receive new share certificates 
reflecting the equity shares held by each member in the Resulting 
Company. The new shares can be issued in dematerialized form by the 
Resulting Company provided that the details of depository accounts of 
the members of the Demerged Company are made available to the 
Resulting Company unless otherwise notified in writing by the 
shareholders of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company.  

2.  Promoters and Non-
Promoters 
Shareholders 

None of the shareholders are adversely impacted pursuant to the 
Scheme. 

3.  Key Managerial 
Personnel and 
Directors 

The Scheme is not expected to have any effect on the Directors of the 
Company and no change in the Board of the Company is envisaged on 
account of the Scheme. Further, none of the directors of the Demerged 
Company have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Demerged Company 

4.  Creditors Pursuant to the Scheme, the liability of the Demerged Company and 
Resulting Company towards its creditors shall not undergo any change 
and shall be paid off in the ordinary course of business. 

5.  Depositors Not Applicable 

6.  Debenture 
holders 

Not Applicable  

7.  Deposit Trustee Not Applicable 

8.  Debenture trustee Not Applicable 

9.  Employee The Scheme in no manner whatsoever affects the terms and conditions of 
employment of the employees of the Demerged Company. 

On the Scheme coming into effect, all staff and employees of Demerged 
Company (relating to Demerged Undertaking as decided by the 
management) in service on such date shall be deemed to have become 
staff and employees of the Resulting Company without any break or 
interruption in their service as a result of the transfer for the purpose of 
any payment on any retrenchment, compensation or other benefits, and 
on the basis of continuity of service and the terms and conditions of their 
employment with the Resulting Company shall not be less favorable than 
those applicable to them with reference to Demerged Company on the 
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Effective Date. 

 

 Disclosure about effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, key managerial personnel 
(KMP), debenture trustee and other stakeholders: 

 There will no effect on the interest of directors and other stakeholders. There are no debenture trustees in the 
Demerged or Resulting Company 

 As on 23.03.2023, the Demerged Company had 901 (nine hundred one) unsecured creditors and amount due 
to such unsecured creditors was INR 7,54,88,226 (Indian Rupees Seven Crores Fifty Four Lakhs Eighty-Eight 
Thousand and Two Hundred Twenty Six)  

(iv) Other details regarding the Scheme required as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules 

Salient sections of the Scheme: 

1. The Scheme envisages scheme of arrangement, proposing the transfer and vesting of the Demerged 
Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from Ziqitza Health Care Limited to Zenplus Private Limited.   

 

 

Parties involved in the Scheme of Amalgamation: 

Ziqitza Health Care Limited (“Demerged Company”) and Zenplus Private Limited (“Resulting Company”) 

Relationship subsisting between the Companies: 

The entire share capital of the Resulting Company is held by the Demerged Company.  

2. Appointed Date, Effective Date, Record Date and Share Entitlement Ratio: 

Appointed Date: The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2022 
 

Effective Date: The effective date means the last of the dates on which the conditions and matters referred 
to in Clause 16 of the Scheme have been fulfilled. 

Share Exchange Ratio and other considerations, if any: 
 

- For demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company:   
One equity share (face value of INR 10/- per share) of Resulting Company to be issued for One equity 
share (face value of INR 10/- per share) of Demerged Company 

 

3. Summary of the Share Swap Report: 

 

Share Swap report for Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company to the 
Resulting Company 

 

The Valuer has considered that the entire investment of the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company 
shall form part of the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company and hence the entire share capital of 
the Resulting Company held by Demerged Company shall stand cancelled pursuant to the Scheme. Upon 
the Scheme becoming effective, all the shareholders of the Demerged Company shall become 
shareholders in the Resulting Company and their shareholding would mirror in the Resulting Company. 
Considering the mirror shareholding, the Valuer has stated that any share entitlement ratio is fair and 
reasonable and accordingly the Valuer has not carried any independent valuation of Demerged Undertaking 
of Demerged Company.  Therefore, the Valuer has recommended the exchange ratio of 1:1. The valuation 
report is enclosed as Annexure 4. 

 

4. Detail of capital restructuring: 
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There shall be no capital restructuring of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company pursuant to the 
Scheme except to the extent of the change in the share capital pursuant to cancellation of cross holding of 
shares between Demerged Company and Resulting Company and issuance of shares by the Resulting 
Company to the shareholders of the Demerged Company. Pursuant to the Scheme, shares shall be issued 
to the shareholders of the Demerged Company by the Resulting Company as per the share entitlement 
ratio. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the above provisions, the shareholders of the 
Demerged Company as on the Specified Date shall receive new share certificates reflecting the equity 
shares held by each member in the Resulting Company. The new shares can be issued in dematerialized 
form by the Resulting Company provided that the details of depository accounts of the members of the 
Demerged Company are made available to the Resulting Company unless otherwise notified in writing by 
the shareholders of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company. 

 

5. Detail of debt restructuring: 

There shall be no debt restructuring of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.  

6. Benefits and rationale of the Scheme as perceived by the Board of Directors 

Rationale of scheme of arrangement between the Demerged and the Resulting Company is as under: 

- Platform for growth capital: The Demerged Company operates in a sector which is capital intensive and 
the business require funds to scale and operate at its full potential. The management has identified 
business undertaking which has huge potential to attract investors and the proposed demerger will 
provide a platform for investors who can partner with the company in their growth path. 

- Improved management control: The segregation will ensure adoption of strategies necessary for growth 
of respective businesses and ensures better management control on the respective businesses. 

7. Accounting Treatment: 

The accounting treatment in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013.  

The Demerged Company shall, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from Appointed 
Date, reduce the assets, reserves and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, being transferred 
to the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme, from its books of accounts at their existing carrying 
values as at the Appointed Date.   

The Resulting Company shall, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from Appointed 
Date, record the assets, reserves and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking vested in it 
pursuant to this Scheme, at their respective existing carrying values appearing in the books of accounts of 
the Demerged Company as at the Appointed Date.   

Copy of certificates issued by the Auditors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company confirming 
the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme enclosed as Annexure 8 (Colly) 

 No investigation or proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Demerged Company 
and the Resulting Company under the Act. 

 Details of availability of the following documents for obtaining extracts from or making or 
obtaining copies 

 The following documents will be available for obtaining extract from or for making or obtaining copies of or 
for inspection by the unsecured creditors of Ziqitza Health Care Limited, Demerged Company at its 
Registered Office at Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West Mumbai, Mumbai City, 
Maharashtra – 400013 between 09:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on any working day (except Saturdays, Sundays 
and Public Holidays) up to the date of the Tribunal Convened Meeting: 

A. Certified copy of the orders dated 27.07.2023 and 22.08.2023 passed by the Mumbai Bench of the 
NCLT in relation to Company Application No. CA (CAA) No.128/MB/2023 directing the Demerged 
Company to convene the Tribunal Convened Meeting; 

B. Copy of the Scheme; 

C. Copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Demerged Company and 
the Resulting Company; 
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D. Copies of the latest audited financial statements of the Demerged Company as on March 31, 2022; 

E. Copy of Supplementary accounting statement of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 
for the period ending March 31, 2023; 

F. Register of Directors’ Shareholding of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company; 

G. Copy of Share Swap Report dated 22.03.2023 issued by Kzen Valtech Private Limited, Registered 
Valuer; and 

H. The certificates issued by Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 
Company to the effect that the accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the Scheme is in conformity 
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act; 

I. Copies of publications in “Financial Express” and “Loksatta” of the notice convening meeting. 

 Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other governmental 
authorities in relation to the Scheme 

A. The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to: 

 approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of each class of shareholders and creditors of 
the Parties and such other classes of persons of the said Parties, if any, as applicable or as may 
be required under the Act and as may be directed by the NCLT; 

 the Scheme being approved by the NCLT; 

 such other sanctions and approvals including sanctions of any statutory or regulatory authority, 
as may be required in respect of the Scheme, being obtained; 

 filing by Parties of the certified copies of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme, with the 
respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies. 

B. The Scheme was filed by the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company with the Mumbai Bench 
of the NCLT and the Mumbai Bench of NCLT has given directions to convene a meeting of the equity 
shareholders and unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company, i.e., Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
vide an Order dated 27.07.2023 read with Order dated 22.08.2023. 

C. The Scheme is subject to the approval by equity shareholders and unsecured creditors of the 
Demerged Company, voting in person or by proxy, in terms of Sections 230-232 of the Act. 

D. NCLT has given directions for dispensing with requirement for convening, holding and conducting of 
a meeting of the secured creditors of the Demerged Company. Further, directions have been given for 
dispensing with the requirement of convening, holding and conducting of a meeting of the equity 
shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of the Resulting Company. 

E. Post obtaining approval of equity shareholders and unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company, 
the Demerged Company and Resulting Company will apply to NCLT Mumbai for obtaining approval to 
the Scheme. 

F. All other necessary regulatory and governmental approvals and registrations are required pursuant to, 
in connection with or as a consequence of the Scheme. 

G. This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 
2016 and Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

6. The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company have also filed a copy of the Scheme with the Registrar of 
Companies, Mumbai. 

7. Documents required to be circulated for the Tribunal Convened Meeting under Section 232(2) of the Act: 

As required under Section 232(2) of the Act, the following documents are being circulated with this notice and 
the explanatory statement: 
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(i) Scheme of Arrangement enclosed as Annexure 1 . 

(ii) Copy of the Order of the NCLT dated 27.07.2023 as Annexure 2. 

(iii) Copy of the Order of the NCLT dated 22.08.2023 as Annexure 3. 

(iv) Share Swap Report dated 22.03.2023 issued by M/s Kzen Valtech Private Limited, Registered Valuer enclosed 
as Annexure 4.  

(v) Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, enclosed as Annexure 5 (Colly). 

(vi) Supplementary accounting statement for the period ending March 31, 2023, along with the Audited Financials 
as at March 31, 2022 of the Demerged Company enclosed as Annexure 6 (Colly). 

(vii) Supplementary accounting statement for the period ending March 31, 2023 of the Resulting Company, 
enclosed as Annexure 7. 

(viii) Copies of Certificates issued by Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company to the 
effect that the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, enclosed as Annexure 8 (Colly). 

 

(ix) Copies of the publications in “Financial Express” and “Loksatta” of the notice convening meeting, enclosed as 
Annexure 9 (Colly). 

 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Ms. Manjula Easwaran 

Authorized Signatory 
Ziqitza Health Care Limited  

 
 
 

Sd- 
Mr. Shaffi Mather 

Chairperson appointed for the 
meeting 

 

 

Dated: 05.09.2023 
Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
Registered Office: 
Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg,  
Dadar West Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra – 400013 
CIN:  U85110MH2002PLC138005 
Tel No: +91 61785000; Email: m.easwaran@murgency.com 
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 N THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL 

 COURT – V, MUMBAI BENCH 
 

        CA(CAA) 128/MB/2023 

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013; 

AND 

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under; 

AND 

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Ziqi-

tza Health Care Limited (“Demerged Company” or 

“First Applicant Company”) having CIN 

U85110MH2002PLC138005 and Zenplus Private 

Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Second Appli-

cant Company”) having CIN 

U85300MH2022PTC386830 and their respective 

shareholders. (’Scheme’) 

 

Ziqitza Health Care Limited,  ... First Applicant Company/ 

CIN: U85110MH2002PLC138005     Demerged Company          

  

Zenplus Private Limited,   …Second Applicant Company/  

CIN: U85300MH2022PTC386830       Resulting Company    

The First Applicant Company and Second Applicant Company are collectively referred 

to as ‘Applicant Companies’. 

Date of Order:  27.07.2023 

Coram:  

Hon’ble Shri Kuldip Kumar Kareer, Member (Judicial) 

Hon’ble Smt. Anuradha Sanjay Bhatia, Member (Technical) 
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FOR THE APPLICANTS:  Mr. Hemant Sethi, Ms. Devanshi Sethi, Ms. Tanaya 

Sethi i/b Hemant Sethi & Co. 

Per: Anuradha Sanjay Bhatia, Member (Technical) 

ORDER 

1. The Learned Counsel for the Applicant Companies submit that the present Scheme 

is a Scheme of Arrangement between Ziqitza Health Care Limited (First Appli-

cant Company/ Demerged Company) and Zenplus Private Limited (Second Ap-

plicant Company/ Resulting Company) and their respective Shareholders. The 

Scheme involves the transfer and vesting of Demerged Undertaking (as defined in 

the Scheme) from the First Applicant Company/ Demerged Company to the Second 

Applicant Company/ Resulting Company.  

2. The Learned Counsel for the Applicant Companies submit that the First Applicant 

Company is engaged in providing nationwide network of life support ambulance ser-

vices which would provide basic life support, advance life support and patient trans-

fer services. The Second Applicant Company was incorporated with an objective to 

engage in the business of setting up, maintaining and managing hospitals, clinic, first 

aid center, mobile medical units, running ambulances, emergency medical services, 

promoting medical and health care education and management training. The Second 

Applicant Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the First Applicant Company. 

3. The Share Capital of First Applicant Company as at December 31, 2022 is as un-

der: 
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Particulars Amount in 

INR 

Authorised Capital  

12,50,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each 1,25,00,000 

60,00,000 Series A compulsory convertible preference shares of ₹ 

10 each 

6,00,00,000 

10,00,000 Series B compulsory convertible preference shares of ₹ 

10 each 

1,00,00,000 

Total  8,25,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital  

4,12,661 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 41,26,610 

Total 41,26,610 

4. The Share Capital of Second Applicant Company as at December 31, 2022 is as un-

der: 

Particulars Amount in INR 

Authorised Capital   

1,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 10,00,000 

Total 10,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital   

10,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 100,000 

Total 100,000 

 

5. The Learned Counsel for the Applicant Companies submits that the Board of Direc-

tors of the Applicant Companies vide resolutions dated 24th March 2023 at their 

respective board meetings approved the Scheme of Arrangement. Further, the 

Learned Counsel for the Applicant Companies submits that the Appointed Date was 

fixed as 1 April 2022. 

6. The Learned Counsel for the Applicant Companies submits the following rationale 

of the Scheme: 
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 “Platform for growth capital – Demerged Company operates in a sector 

which is capital intensive and the business require funds to scale and operate 

at its full potential. The management has identified business undertaking 

which has huge potential to attract investors and the proposed demerger will 

provide a platform for investors who can partner with the company in their 

growth path. 

 

 Improved management control – The segregation will ensure adoption of 

strategies necessary for growth of respective businesses and ensures better 

management control on the respective businesses” 

7. The Learned Counsel for Applicant Companies further submits that in terms of clause 

7.1 of the Scheme upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and in consideration 

of the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company into the 

Resulting Company  pursuant to this Scheme, the existing share capital of the Re-

sulting Company shall get cancelled and the Resulting Company shall, without any 

further act or deed and without any further payment, issue and allot equity shares 

(hereinafter also referred to as the “New Equity Shares”) at par on a proportionate 

basis to each member of  Demerged Company, whose name is recorded in the register 

of members of Demerged Company as holding shares on the Specified Date, in the 

ratio of 1 (one) equity share of ₹ 10/- each fully paid up of Resulting Company for 

every 1 (one) equity share of ₹ 10/- each fully paid up held in Demerged Company.  

8. The above share entitlement ratio is determined as per the Valuation report dated 22nd 

March 2023 issued by Kzen Valtech Private Limited, Registered Valuer which is 

annexed as Annexure G to the Company Scheme Application.  

In respect of the Equity Shareholders 

a. The Learned Counsel further submits that there are 26 (Twenty-Six) Equity 

Shareholders in the First Applicant Company and has prayed before the 
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Tribunal to convene the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the First Ap-

plicant Company.  The First Applicant Company is directed to convene phys-

ical meeting of its Equity Shareholders of the First Applicant Company be 

convened and held on 25th September, 2023 at 02.00 P.M. for the purpose of 

considering, and if thought fit, approving the proposed Scheme, at Social 

Service League, 2R4Q+6G4, Jagannath Bhatankar Marg, Parel East, Parel, 

Mumbai, Maharashtra 400012. 

b. That at least 30 days before the said meeting of the Equity Shareholders of 

the First Applicant Company to be held as aforesaid, a notice convening the 

said meeting at the place, date and time as aforesaid, together with a copy of 

the Scheme, a copy of statement disclosing all material facts as required un-

der Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with  Rule 6 of the Com-

panies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rule, 2016, shall 

be sent by Courier / Registered Post / Speed Post / Hand delivery or through 

email (to those Equity Shareholders of the First Applicant Company whose 

email addresses are duly registered with the First Applicant Company for the 

purpose of receiving such notices by email), addressed to each of the Equity 

Shareholders of the First Applicant Company, at their last known address or 

email addresses as per the records of the First Applicant Company. 

c. That at least 30 days before the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the 

First Applicant Company to be held as aforesaid, a notice convening the said 

meeting, indicating the place, date and time of meeting as aforesaid be pub-

lished and stating that copies of the Scheme and the statement required to be 

furnished pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with  

Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) 

Rule, 2016 can be obtained free of charge at the Registered Office of the First 

Applicant Company as aforesaid and / or at the office of its Advocates, M/s. 

Hemant Sethi & Co., 309 New Bake House, Maharashtra Chamber of Com-

merce Lane, Kala Ghoda, Fort, Mumbai 400023. 
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d. That the Notice of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the First Appli-

cant Company shall be advertised in two local newspapers viz. “Financial 

Express” in English having nationwide circulation and “Loksatta” in Ma-

rathi, having circulation in Maharashtra not less than 30 days before the date 

fixed for the meeting. 

e. That Mr. Shaffi Mather, Director of the First Applicant Company shall be 

the Chairman of the aforesaid meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the First 

Applicant Company. 

f. That the Chairperson appointed for the aforesaid meeting is authorised to 

issue the advertisement and send out the notices of the meeting referred to 

above. The said Chairperson shall have all powers as per Articles of Associ-

ation and also under the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to the conduct of 

the meeting, including for deciding procedural questions that may arise or at 

any adjournment thereof or resolution, if any, proposed at the aforesaid meet-

ing by any person(s). 

g. That the Chairperson to file an affidavit not less than seven (7) days before 

the date fixed for the holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of 

the First Applicant Company and do report this Tribunal that the direction 

regarding the issue of notices and the advertisement have been duly complied 

with. 

h. The Chairperson shall report to this Tribunal, the results of the aforesaid 

meeting of the First Applicant Company within 30 (thirty) days of the con-

clusion of the aforesaid meeting, and the said report shall be verified by his 

Affidavit as per Rule 14 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 

Amalgamations) Rules 2016.  

i. The quorum for the aforesaid meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the 

First Applicants shall be as prescribed under Section 103 of the Compa-

nies Act, 2013 present in person or through proxy. In case the required 
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quorum as stated above is not present at the commencement of the meet-

ing, the meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (thirty) minutes and thereafter 

the persons present shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. 

j. However, voting in case of body corporate be permitted, provided the pre-

scribed form/authorisation is filed with the First Applicant Company no later 

than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the start of the aforesaid meeting of the 

Equity Shareholders of the First Applicant Company as required under Rule 

10 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) 

Rules, 2016. 

k. That M/s. M. V. Ghelani & Company, Chartered Accountants is hereby ap-

pointed as Scrutinizer of the aforesaid meeting of the Equity Shareholders of 

the First Applicant Company to be held on 25th September, 2023 at 02.00 

P.M. physically or any adjournment or adjournments thereof. The fee of the 

professional appointed as scrutinizer of the aforesaid meeting of Equity 

Shareholders of the First Applicant Company to be held as aforesaid shall be 

aggregating to INR 35,000/- excluding applicable taxes. 

9. The Learned Counsel submits that Second Applicant Company is a wholly owned 

subsidiary of the First Applicant Company and hence there is 1 (One) Equity Share-

holder in the Second Applicant Company. The Learned Counsel submits that they 

have procured the consent affidavits from Equity Shareholders of the Second Ap-

plicant Company which are annexed as Annexure I to the Company Scheme Appli-

cation. 

10. In view of the fact that Equity Shareholders of the Second Applicant Company have 

given their consent affidavits, the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Second 

Applicant Company is hereby dispensed with. 

In respect of the Secured Creditors of the Applicant Companies 
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11. The Learned Counsel for the First Applicant Company submits that there are 6 (Six) 

Secured Creditors of the value of Rs. 22,44,29,771/- in the First Applicant Com-

pany and Secured Creditors constituting ~96.16% of the total value of the Secured 

Creditors of the First Applicant Company have given their consent letters to the 

proposed scheme annexed as Annexure B to the Additional Affidavit.  It is further 

submitted that there is no dilution in securities provided to the Secured Lenders who 

will continue to hold charge over respective assets post sanctioning of Scheme. In 

any event the present Scheme is an arrangement under section 230(1)(b) of the Com-

panies act 2013 and not in accordance with the provisions of section 230(1)(a) of the 

Companies Act 2013 as there is no compromise or arrangement with the Secured 

Creditors. In view of the fact that the requisite Secured Creditors of the First Appli-

cant Company have given their consent to the proposed scheme, the meeting of the 

Secured Creditors of the First Applicant Company is hereby dispensed with. 

12. The Learned Counsel submits that Second Applicant Company does not have Se-

cured Creditors. In view of the fact that the Second Applicant Company does not 

have Secured Creditors, the meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Second Appli-

cant Company is hereby dispensed with. The Certificate of Chartered Accountant 

verifying the list Secured Creditors is annexed as “Annexure L-2” to the Company 

Scheme Application. 

In respect of the Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Companies 

a. The Learned Counsel for the First Applicant Company further submits that 

there are 900 (Nine Hundred) Unsecured Creditors of Value INR 

7,54,88,226/-. That the physical meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the 

First Applicant be convened and held on 25th September, 2023 at 03.30 P.M. 

for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving the proposed 

Scheme, at Social Service League, 2R4Q+6G4, Jagannath Bhatankar Marg, 

Parel East, Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400012. 
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b. That at least 30 days before the said meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the 

First Applicant Company to be held as aforesaid, a notice convening the said 

meeting at the place, date and time as aforesaid, together with a copy of the 

Scheme, a copy of statement disclosing all material facts as required under 

Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with  Rule 6 of the Companies 

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rule, 2016, shall be sent 

by Courier / Registered Post / Speed Post / Hand delivery or through email (to 

those Unsecured Creditors of the First Applicant Company whose email ad-

dresses are duly registered with the First Applicant Company for the purpose 

of receiving such notices by email), addressed to each of the Unsecured Cred-

itors of the First Applicant Company, at their last known address or email ad-

dresses as per the records of the First Applicant Company. 

c. That at least 30 days before the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the First 

Applicant Company to be held as aforesaid, a notice convening the said meet-

ing, indicating the place, date and time of meeting as aforesaid be published 

and stating that copies of the Scheme and the statement required to be fur-

nished pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with  Rule 

6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rule, 

2016 can be obtained free of charge at the Registered Office of the First Ap-

plicant Company as aforesaid and / or at the office of its Advocates, M/s. He-

mant Sethi & Co., 309 New Bake House, Maharashtra Chamber of Commerce 

Lane, Kala Ghoda, Fort, Mumbai 400023. 

d. That the Notice of the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the First Appli-

cant Company shall be advertised in two local newspapers viz. “Financial 

Express” in English having nationwide circulation and “Loksatta” in Mara-

thi, having circulation in Maharashtra not less than 30 days before the date 

fixed for the meeting. 
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e. That Mr. Shaffi Mather, Director of the First Applicant Company shall be the 

Chairman of the aforesaid meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the First Ap-

plicant Company. 

f. That the Chairperson appointed for the aforesaid meeting is authorised to issue 

the advertisement and send out the notices of the meeting referred to above. 

The said Chairperson shall have all powers as per Articles of Association and 

also under the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to the conduct of the meeting, 

including for deciding procedural questions that may arise or at any adjourn-

ment thereof or resolution, if any, proposed at the aforesaid meeting by any 

person(s). 

g. That the Chairperson to file an affidavit not less than seven (7) days before the 

date fixed for the holding of the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the 

First Applicant Company and do report this Tribunal that the direction regard-

ing the issue of notices and the advertisement have been duly complied with. 

h. The Chairpersons shall report to this Tribunal, the results of the aforesaid 

meeting of the First Applicant Company within 30 (thirty) days of the conclu-

sion of the aforesaid meeting, and the said report shall be verified by his Affi-

davit as per Rule 14 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 

Amalgamations) Rules 2016.  

i. The quorum for the aforesaid meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the 

First Applicants shall be as prescribed under Section 103 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 present in person or through proxy. In case the required quorum 

as stated above is not present at the commencement of the meeting, the 

meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (thirty) minutes and thereafter the persons 

present shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. 

j. However, voting in case of body corporate be permitted, provided the pre-

scribed form/authorisation is filed with the First Applicant Company no later 
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than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the start of the aforesaid meeting of the Un-

secured Creditors of the First Applicant Company as required under Rule 10 

of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 

2016. 

k. That M/s. M. V. Ghelani & Company, Chartered Accountants is hereby ap-

pointed as Scrutinizer of the aforesaid meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of 

the First Applicant Company to be held on 25th September, 2023 at 03.30 P.M. 

physically or any adjournment or adjournments thereof. The fee of the profes-

sional appointed as scrutinizer of the aforesaid meeting of Unsecured Credi-

tors of the First Applicant Company to be held as aforesaid shall be aggregat-

ing to INR 35,000/- excluding applicable taxes. 

13. The Learned Counsel further submits that Second Applicant Company does not 

have Unsecured Creditors. In view of the fact that the Second Applicant Company 

does not have Unsecured Creditors, the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the 

Second Applicant Company is hereby dispensed with. The Certificate of Chartered 

Accountant verifying the list Secured Creditors is annexed as “Annexure N-1” to the 

Company Scheme Application. 

14. The Applicant Companies is directed to serve notices of present Application along 

with its enclosures upon : - (i) the Central Government through the office of the con-

cerned Regional Director, and (ii) concerned Registrar of Companies ,(iii) concerned 

Income Tax Authority within whose jurisdiction the Applicant Companies’ assess-

ment are made pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgama-

tions) Rules, 2016, through R.P.A.D or by email or by speed post or by courier or 

hand delivery with a direction that they may submit their representations, if any, 

within a period of thirty days (30) from the date of receipt of such notice to the Tri-

bunal with copy of such representations shall simultaneously be served upon the Ap-

plicant Companies failing which, it shall be presumed that the authorities have no 

representations to make on the proposals. 
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15. The Applicant Companies shall host notices along with the copy of the Scheme on 

their respective websites, if any. 

16. The Applicant Companies to file Affidavit of Service within 10 days in the Registry 

proving dispatch of notices to the Regulatory Authorities and dispatch of notices to 

creditors of the Applicant Companies (wherever applicable) and to report to this Tri-

bunal that the directions regarding the issue of notices have been duly complied with. 

17. The Appointed Date is April 1, 2022. 

18. Ordered accordingly. 

 

             Sd/-                                                                      Sd/-  

ANURADHA SANJAY BHATIA                          KULDIP KUMAR KAREER 

           Member(Technical)                                            Member(Judicial) 
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NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL 
COURT-V, MUMBAI BENCH 

 
9. CA/357/2023   

C.A.(CAA)/128(MB)2023 
CORAM: 
       MS. REETA KOHLI,                              MS. MADHU SINHA, 
           MEMBER (J)                                            MEMBER (T) 

 
        

ORDER SHEET OF THE HEARING OF MUMBAI BENCH OF THE NATIONAL 
COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL ON 22.08.2023. 

 
NAME OF THE PARTIES:  ZIQITZA HEALTH CARE LIMITED  

  
SECTION : 230 -232, 234 of the Companies Act 2013 

 

 

 

Presence: Ms. Devanshi Sethi, Counsel for the Applicant.  

ORDER 

C.A. 357 of 2023 

The application prays for the amendment of the order dated 27.07.2023 

seeking direction to postpone the meeting of the equity shareholders 

and Unsecured Creditors of the Company due to non-availability of the 

stated venue for the meeting on 05.09.2023 and to convene the physical 

meeting of the equity shareholders and Unsecured Creditors of the 1st 

Applicant Company on 19.10.2023 at 5:00 p.m. and 19.10.2023 at 6:00 

p.m. respectively. 

After hearing the counsel, the prayer is allowed with the undertaking 

that all equity shareholders and unsecured creditors shall be informed 

about the change of the date and venue by the Applicant. 

            Sd/-                                                           Sd/- 
   MADHU SINHA                                            REETA KOHLI 

Member(Technical)                                       Member(Judicial) 
/P/ 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Members of Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ziqitza Health Care Limited (‘the Holding 

Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), as listed 

in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information 
of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2023, 
and their consolidated profit, and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 12 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 

 

4. We draw attention Note 33 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements which describes the on-going 
litigation pursuant to the charge sheet filed by Central Bureau of Investigation (‘CBI’) against the Holding Company 
and its past directors and employees relating to the allegations of certain irregularities in the contract referred to in the 
said note. Based on the legal advice obtained by the Holding Company from its legal counsel, management of Holding 
company is of the view that no adjustments are required to be made to the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our 

auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
 

6. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board of 

Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated  financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the 
Group in accordance with  the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board 
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

8. Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
companies included in the Group. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;  
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

    

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.; 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern; and 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the 
financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the financial 
statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion. 

 
11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 
 
Other Matter 
 

12. We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of 
₹2,061.22 lakhs and net liabilities of ₹ 2,066.87 lakhs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues of ₹ 1,820.73 lakhs and net 
cash outflows amounting to ₹ 101.79 for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. These financial statements have  been audited by other auditors whose report(s) have been furnished to 
us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of 
the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

 
Further, these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have 
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which 
have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective 
countries. The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located 

outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s 

management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of such subsidiaries located outside India, is based on the report of other auditors and 
the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us. 

 
Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done by and the 
reports of the other auditors. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement 
                                 

13. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the Order reports 
issued by us, of companies included in the consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act we report that 
there are no qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies. 
 

14. As required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit incorporated in India whose financial statements have 
been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements; 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books  

 
c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements; 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021; 
 

e) The matter(s) described in paragraph 4 and 5 of the Emphasis of Matter, in our opinion, may have an adverse 
effect on the functioning of the Holding Company 

 
f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 

companies and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
none of the  directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.  
 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company, and its subsidiary companies and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in ‘Annexure II’ wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion;  

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:  

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial 

position of the Group as detailed in Note 30 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements;  

The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023.; 
 

  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection   
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies during the year ended 31 March 2023;  

 

ii.  

a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in 

India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the 

other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief  as 

disclosed in note 38 (v) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such 

subsidiary companies (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in 

India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that to the 

best of their knowledge and belief as disclosed in the note 38 (vi) to the accompanying consolidated 

financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary 

companies, or its associate companies or its joint venture companies from any person(s) or 

entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded 

in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies, its associate 

companies or its joint venture companies shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate 

Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

and 

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management 

representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement 

iii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies have not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 

31 March 2023. 

 

iv. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use 
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software which 
has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly, 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not 
applicable for the current financial year. 

 
 
 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 

 
 
 

Rakesh R. Agarwal 
Partner 

Membership No.: 109632 
 
UDIN: 23109632BGXEDE8622 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24 August 2023 
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Annexure I  
 
List of entities 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the entity Relationship 

1. Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited Subsidiary 

2. Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited Subsidiary 

3. Zenplus Private Limited Subsidiary 

4. Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services Pte. Limited  Subsidiary 

5. Ziqitza Gulf Medical Responses and Ambulance Services Step-down subsidiary 

 
 

118



 

 

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 

11th Floor, Tower II, 
One International Center, 
S B Marg, Prabhadevi (W), 
Mumbai - 400 013 
Maharashtra, India 

T +91 22 6626 2699 
F +91 22 6626 2601 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

   
   

                   

Chartered Accountants 

 

Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Dehradun, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune  

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with limited liability with 

identification number AAC-2085 and has its registered office at L-
41, Connaught Circus, Outer Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annexure II 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)  
 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Ziqitza Health Care Limited  (‘the Holding 

Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), as at 

and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the 
Act, as at that date. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls 
 

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to 

the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

  
 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued 
by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary companies, as aforesaid. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements  
 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements  
 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 

8. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary company, the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, 
based on the internal financial controls with respect to financial statements criteria established by the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note issued by the ICAI . 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 
 
 
 
 
 
Rakesh R. Agarwal 
Partner 

Membership No.: 109632 
 
UDIN: 23109632BGXEDE8622 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24 August 2023 
 

120



Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Note

 No.

 As at

31 March 2023

 As at

31 March 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

Share capital 3 41.27                              41.27                           

Reserves and surplus 4 13,835.98                       10,849.17                    

13,877.25                       10,890.44                    

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5 4,370.31                         1,224.15                      

Other long-term liabilities 6 54.00                              222.38                         

Long-term provisions 7 1,505.94                         1,785.73                      

5,930.25                         3,232.26                      

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 8 1,325.91                         3,130.64                      

Trade payables 9

 - Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 20.43                              2.97                             

 - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and

   small enterprises

2,222.75                         2,854.99                      

Other current liabilities 10 5,516.98                         4,390.59                      

Short-term provisions 7 1,007.44                         1,165.31                      

10,093.51                       11,544.50                    

Total 29,901.01                       25,667.20                    

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

- Property, plant and equipment  11 A 2,888.51                         2,191.72                      

- Intangible assets  11 B 279.33                            353.35                         

Goodwill on consolidation 4.47                                4.47                             

Capital work-in-progress 12 447.50                            17.60                           

Deferred tax assets 13 1,247.16                         1,092.87                      

Long-term loans and advances 14 738.09                            1,824.04                      

Other non-current assets 15 1,019.81                         810.62                         

6,624.87                         6,294.67                      

Current assets

Current Investments 16 2.50                                742.76                         

Inventories 17 221.45                            218.99                         

Trade receivables 18 10,327.40                       11,143.80                    

Cash and bank balances 19 9,072.77                         4,250.58                      

Short-term loans and advances 14 1,951.68                         1,168.49                      

Other current assets 20 1,700.34                         1,847.91                      

23,276.14                       19,372.53                    

Total 29,901.01                       25,667.20                    

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our

audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok and Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No:109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place: Dubai Place: Cochin

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN:01348861 ACS No: A13858

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of                            

Ziqitza Health Care Limited
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Note 

No.

Year ended

31 March 2023

Year ended

31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 21 51,296.41                  66,853.52             

Other income 22 486.15                       197.41                  

Total income 51,782.56                  67,050.93             

Expenses

Cost of services 23 19,566.08                  32,023.03             

Purchase of stock-in-trade 0.90                           6.53                       

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 24 5.41                           18.78                     

Employee benefits expense 25 21,433.22                  25,667.46             

Finance costs 26 932.96                       774.01                  

Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 1,209.78                    905.49                  

Other expenses 28 3,928.02                    3,653.40               

Total expenses 47,076.37                  63,048.70             

Profit before tax 4,706.19                    4,002.23               

Tax expenses/ (credit):

 - Current tax (including earlier year adjustments) 1,685.03                    614.42                  

 - Deferred tax (147.13)                      (279.83)                 

1,537.90                    334.59                  

Net profit for the year 3,168.29                    3,667.64               

Earnings per equity share of face value ₹ 10 each : 29

Basic (in ₹) 767.77                       888.78                  

Diluted (in ₹) 767.77                       888.78                  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok and Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No:109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place: Dubai Place: Cochin

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN: 01348861 ACS No: A13858

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of           

Ziqitza Health Care Limited
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2023

Year ended

31 March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit before tax 4,706.19          4,002.23                

Adjustment for: 

Bad debts written-off 180.72             384.62                   

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 79.07               56.46                     

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,209.78          905.49                   

Finance costs 932.96             774.00                   

Unrealised foreign exchange gain (0.25)                (0.37)                     

Interest income (289.74)            (115.50)                 

Gain on sale of mutual fund (17.64)              (16.48)                   

Provision no longer required written back (141.49)            (17.15)                   

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (13.48)              (18.85)                   

Operating profit before working capital changes 6,646.10          5,954.45                

Changes in working capital:

Increase in inventories (2.46)                (11.35)                   

Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables 654.55             (3,667.03)              

Increase in loans and advances (554.57)            (142.53)                 

Decrease / (Increase) in other assets (241.55)            848.90                   

Decrease in trade payables (552.10)            (519.56)                 

Increase in other current liabilites 893.28             1,008.60                

Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (568.13)            632.99                   

(370.98)            (1,849.98)              

Cash generated from operations 6,275.12          4,104.48                

Income tax paid (net of refund received) (182.92)            (1,313.05)              

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 6,092.20          2,791.43                

Cash flow from investing activities: 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,766.81)         (1,982.50)              

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 27.53               91.72                     

Loans given to related parties (130.79)            -                        

Investment in bank deposits (3,260.61)         (809.67)                 

Investment in mutual funds -                   (670.55)                 

Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds 757.91             727.78                   

Interest received 162.16             76.89                     

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (5,210.61)         (2,566.33)              

Cash flow from financing activities: 

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 3,437.01          837.59                   

Repayment of long-term borrowings (131.17)            (86.40)                   

Proceeds from / (repayment) of short term borrowings (net) (1,944.63)         794.18                   

Finance costs paid (917.88)            (771.79)                 

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 443.32             773.58                   

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 1,324.91          998.67                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,179.02          1,180.35                

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,503.93          2,179.02                

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 19(a))

Cash on hand 1.72                 4.83                       

Balances with banks - in current accounts 3,502.22          2,174.19                

Total cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 3,503.94          2,179.02                

-                        

Notes :-

2. Additions include movement of capital advances and liabilities for capital goods, including intangible assets

1.The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard-3, "Cash Flow Statement"

3. The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our 

audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok and Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No:109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place:Dubai Place: Cochin

Place:Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN: 01348861 ACS No

Place: Hyderabad Place:Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Ziqitza Health Care Limited
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

1. Corporate Information 
 

Ziqitza Health Care Limited (‘the Holding Company’ or ‘the Parent Company’) is a public company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act 1956 (‘the Act 1956’). The Holding Company 
having CIN U85110MH2002PLC138005 is engaged in providing nationwide network of life support ambulance 
service which would provide basic life support, advanced life support and patient transfer services. The registered 
office of the Holding Company is located at 23rd Floor, Sunshine Tower, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), 
Mumbai 400013, India. 
 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”). These consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized for issue in accordance with resolution of 
Board of Directors on 24 August 2023. 
 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

a. Basis of accounting and preparation of Consolidated financial statements 
 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the accounting 
standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, read with Rule 7 to the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules 2021 in respect of Section 133 to the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting principle generally 
accepted in India. The Consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, on an 
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used in the previous year. 
 
The Group’s financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Holding Company’s functional 

currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (₹ 00,000), except when otherwise indicated. 
 
All the assets and liabilities of the Group have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as 
per the operating cycle of the Group as per the guidance set out in Schedule III to the Act. 
 

b. Principles of consolidation  
 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on the following basis: 
 

i. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard-21, 
Consolidated Financial Statements (‘AS 21’) and on the basis of the separate audited financial statements of 
Ziqitza Health Care Limited and its subsidiaries. Reference in the notes to ‘the Holding Company’ shall mean to 

include Ziqitza Health Care Limited and ‘Group’ shall include Ziqitza Health Care Limited and its subsidiaries 

consolidated in these consolidated financial statements unless otherwise stated. 
 

ii. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for the like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same 
manner as in the Holding Company’s separate financial statements. 
 

iii. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together 
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group 
balances/transactions and elimination of resulting unrealised profits or losses in accordance with AS-21. 
 

iv. The excess of the cost to the Holding Company of its investment in a subsidiary company over its share of the 
equity of the subsidiary companies at the dates on which the investment in the subsidiary companies are made, 
is recognised as ‘Goodwill’ being as asset in the consolidated financial statements and recognised separately 

as an asset in the consolidated financial statements. Alternatively, where the share of equity in the subsidiary 
companies as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investment of the Holding Company, it is 
recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’, in the consolidated 

financial statements. 
 
v. Foreign subsidiaries financials prepared in compliance with the local laws and applicable Accounting Standards 

are translated as per Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (IGAAP) for the purpose of consolidation 
taking into account local laws, if any. In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, 
revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are 
converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation (including 
goodwill on consolidation) is recognised in the ‘Foreign Currency Fluctuation Reserve’. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

vi. Notes to the consolidated financial statements represents notes involving items which are considered material 
are accordingly disclosed. Materiality for the purpose is assessed in relation to the information contained in the 
consolidated financial statements. Further, additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial 
statements of the Holding Company and/or subsidiaries having no bearing on the true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial statements has not been disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. 

 
c. Group companies included for consolidation 

List of companies included in consolidated financial statement and the Holding Company’s shareholding are as 

under: 
 

Name of the Subsidiary Country of 
Incorporation 

% 
Holding 

Immediate Holding 
Company 

Principal 
Activities 

Ziqitza South East Asia 
Medical Response and 
Ambulance Services 
Pte. Ltd. 

Singapore 100% Ziqitza Health Care 
Limited 

 
 
 
 
Emergency medical 
response and ambulance 
services 

Ziqitza Gulf Medical 
Response and 
Ambulance Services 

United Arab 
Emirates 
(UAE) 

100% Ziqitza South East Asia 
Medical Response and 
Ambulance Services Pte. 
Limited 

Medcare 365 Medical 
Services Pvt Ltd 

India 100% Ziqitza Health Care 
Limited 

Ziqitza Brand 
Management Private 
Limited 

India 100% Ziqitza Health Care 
Limited 

Providing training services 
related to emergency 
medical response. 

Zenplus Pvt Ltd India 100% Ziqitza Health Care 
Limited 

Emergency Medical 
response and ambulance 
services 

 
 

d. Accounting Estimates 
 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of consolidated financial statements and 
the results of operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best 

knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in 
the period in which they are determined. 
 

e. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if 
any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes inward freight, duties, taxes, and incidental expenses related to acquisition 
/ installation up to the point the asset is ready for its intended use. 
  
Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Consolidated financial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

 
f. Capital work-in-progress 

 
Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and are carried 
at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost, borrowing costs capitalized and other direct 
expenditure. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

g. Intangible Assets 
 

Intangible assets comprise of license fees, implementation cost for software and other application software 
acquired for in-house use. These assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, 
if any. These assets are to be amortised over the period of 3-6 years. 
 

h. Depreciation and amortisation 
 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to expense the cost less residual value over their 
useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on a written down value basis.  
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 
Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use, over their estimated useful lives. 

 

Asset Category Useful life in (Years) Basis of determination of useful lives 

Building 60 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Leasehold improvements Lease period or 5 years, 
whichever is lower 

Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Plant and equipment 13 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Furniture and fixtures  10 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Motor Vehicles 6 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Office equipment 5 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Computers 3 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

 
i. Impairment of assets 

 
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment based 
on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss whenever the 
carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of 
the assets (or where applicable, that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the 
higher of its net selling price and its value-in-use. A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed 
depending on changes in circumstances. However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the 
carrying value that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment. 

 
j. Investments 

 
Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on 
which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as 
non-current investments. 
 
Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost or fair value determined on an 
individual investment basis. Non-current investments are carried at cost and provision for diminution in value is 
made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments. Trade investments are the 
investments made for or to enhance/promote the Group’s business interests. 
 
On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. 
  
On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or 
credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

k. Inventories 
 

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value (NRV), whichever is lower. Cost is determined using 
Weighted Average method and includes all applicable cost of bringing the goods to their present location and 
condition. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

l. Provisions and contingencies 
 
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on management's estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. Provisions are recognised in the financial statements in 
respect of present probable obligations, for amounts which can be reliably estimated. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence 
would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Group.  

 
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements. 

 
m. Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and cash on hand. The Group considers all highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three month or less from date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. 

 
n. Revenue Recognition 

 

Revenue is recognised on rendering of services and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the 

consideration to be received. Revenue is recognised for various services as follows: 

 

(i) Revenue from sale of services  

 
Revenue from services rendered is recognized based on the terms of arrangement with its customer and to the 
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and no significant uncertainty exists 
regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from rendering of service. 

 

(ii) Sale of traded goods: 

 
Revenue from sale of traded goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership to 
the buyer as per the terms of sale and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the consideration to be 
received. Revenue is recorded at net of sales tax and trade discounts. 

 

(iii) Interest income and other income: 

 
Interest and other income are accounted for on time proportion basis except where the receipt of income is 
uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis. 

 
 

o. Employee benefits 
 

(i) Defined contribution plan  
 

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance and labour 

welfare fund, etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and 
when services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution 
Schemes as the Group has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions. 

 

(ii) Defined benefit plan: Gratuity 
 

The Group provides for gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, liability towards which is determined based on 
an actuarial valuation, as at the balance sheet date, performed by an independent actuary using the projected 
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of the defined benefit plans are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. The classification of the Group’s net obligation 

into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

(iii) Leave entitlement 
 

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefit. Leave entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are provided based on an 
actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. However, as the Group does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for these obligations, the above liabilities are presented as current. Re-measurement, 
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. 

 

(iv) Other short-term benefits 
 

Other short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as 
expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss the period in which the related 
service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in 
which the absences occur. 

 
p. Earnings per share 
 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for 
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the 
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 
 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 
q. Taxes on Income 

 
(i) Current tax 

 
Provision for current tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for 
allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and 
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the 
reporting date. 
 

(ii) Deferred tax 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences attributable to timing 
differences between the carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively 
enacted at the Balance Sheet dates. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is 
recognised in the period that includes the enactment date.  

 
Where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if 
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable 
profits. Where there is no unabsorbed depreciation/carry forward loss, deferred tax assets are recognised only 
to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date to reassess realisation. 

  
 

r. Leases 
 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. 
 
(i) Operating lease 

 
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 
term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the 
statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

 
 

(ii) Finance lease  
 
Assets taken on lease by the Group in its capacity as lessee, where the Group has substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Such a lease is capitalised at the inception of the 
lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is 
recognised for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the 
interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year. 
 

s. Foreign currency transactions 
 

(i) Initial Recognition 
 
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of 
the transaction. 

 
(ii) Conversion 

 
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

 
(iii) Treatment of Exchange Differences 

Exchange differences arising on settlement/restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities 
of the Group are recognised as income or expense in the statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

(iv) Foreign statement of overseas operations 
 
Financial statement of overseas operations are accounted as follows:  
(a) Assets and liabilities including goodwill and capital reserve arising on consolidation at the rate 

prevailing at the end of the year. 
(b) Revenues and expenses, including depreciation and amortisation at average exchange rate prevailing 

during the year. 
(c) Exchange differences arising on translation of non-integral foreign operations are accumulated in the 

“Foreign Currency Monetary Translation Account” until the disposal of such investment. 
 

t. Segment reporting 
 

The primary reporting of the Group has been performed on the basis of business segments. The Group has 
only one business segment, which is providing emergency medical response and ambulance services. 
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in these consolidated financial statements relate to this primary business 
segment. The group mainly has business operations in India along with certain business operations outside 
India. 
 

 
(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Number Amount Number Amount

3 Share capital

Authorised

Equity shares of  ₹ 10 each 1,250,000      125.00               1,250,000          125.00              

Preference shares:

Series A compulsory convertible preference shares of ₹ 10 each 6,000,000      600.00               6,000,000          600.00              

Series B compulsory convertible preference shares of ₹ 10 each 1,000,000      100.00               1,000,000          100.00              

8,250,000      825.00               8,250,000          825.00              

Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

Equity shares of  ₹ 10 each, fully paid up 412,661         41.27                 412,661             41.27                

Total 412,661         41.27                 412,661             41.27                

  a)  Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Amount Number Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 412,661         41.27                 412,661             41.27                

Issued during the year -                 -                     -                     -                    

Outstanding at the end of the year 412,661         41.27                 412,661             41.27                

  b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

  c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Holding Company

Name of  shareholder
Number of 

Shares

% of holding in 

the class 

Number of 

Shares

% of holding in 

the class 

Murgency Global Services Private Limited 46,758           11.33 -                     -                    

Acumen Fund Inc. 89,944           21.80 134,916             32.69

Mather & Co Private Limited 56,625           13.72 56,625               13.72

Neeta Sacheti 40,000           9.69 40,000               9.69

Global Medical Response of India Limited 44,184           10.71 44,184               10.71

Richa Jain 48,538           11.76 24,626               5.97

Naresh Jain 100                0.02 24,012               5.82

Grand Global Impex Pte. Limited 22,550           5.46 22,550               5.46

d) Shareholding of promoters:

As at 31 March 2023

Name of the promoters
No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year
% held

No. of shares at 

the end of the 

year

% held
% change 

during the year

Murgency Global Services Private Limited                                              -                      -                  46,758 11.33% 11.33%

Mather & Co. Private Limited                                      56,625 13.72%                56,625 13.72%                       -   

Chandra Sacheti                                                                                  12,195 2.96%                12,195 2.96%                       -   

Neeta Sacheti                                      40,000 9.69%                40,000 9.69%                       -   

Naresh Jain                                      24,012 5.82%                     100 0.03% 5.79%

Grand Global Impex Pte. Limited                                      22,550 5.46%                22,550 5.46%                       -   

Richa Jain                                                                                24,626 5.97%                48,538 11.76% -5.79%

Empee Holding Limited                                      15,000 3.63%                15,000 3.63%                       -   

Nisha Purshothaman                                                                           12,700 3.08%                12,700 3.08%                       -   

Mangal Laxmi Consultants Private Limited                                      11,250 2.73%                11,250 2.73%                       -   

Ravi Krishna                                        5,889 1.43%                  5,889 1.43%                       -   

Manish Sacheti                                           200 0.05%                     200 0.05%                       -   

Shaffi Mather                                           100 0.02%                     100 0.02%                       -   

As at 31 March 2022

Name of the promoters
No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year
% held

No. of shares at 

the end of the 

year

% held
% change 

during the year

Mather & Co. Private Limited                                      56,625 13.72%                56,625 13.72%                       -   

Chandra Sacheti                                                                                  52,195 12.65%                12,195 2.96% 9.69%

Neeta Sacheti                                              -   0.00%                40,000 9.69% -9.69%

Naresh Jain                                      24,012 5.82%                24,012 5.82%                       -   

Grand Global Impex Pte. Limited                                      22,550 5.46%                22,550 5.46%                       -   

Richa Jain                                                                                24,626 5.97%                24,626 5.97%                       -   

Empee Holding Limited                                      15,000 3.63%                15,000 3.63%                       -   

Nisha Purshothaman                                                                           12,700 3.08%                12,700 3.08%                       -   

Mangal Laxmi Consultants Private Limited                                      11,250 2.73%                11,250 2.73%                       -   

Ravi Krishna                                        5,889 1.43%                  5,889 1.43%                       -   

Manish Sacheti                                           200 0.05%                     200 0.05%                       -   

Shaffi Mather                                           100 0.02%                     100 0.02%                       -   

  e) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately

preceding the reporting date:

- Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares - Nil

- Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash - Nil

- Equity shares bought back by the Holding Company - Nil

 As at 31 March 2023 

As at 31 March 2023

 As at 31 March 2022 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended

 31 March 2023

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The

Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the

ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As per above records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial

interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

 As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2022
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at 

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

4 Reserves and surplus

(a) Securities Premium 2,359.77                    2,359.77             

(b)

Foreign Currency Translation Reserves:

Balance at the beginning of the year (40.97)                        (164.24)               

Less: Movement during the year (181.48)                      123.27                

Closing balance (222.45)                      (40.97)                 

(c) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Opening balance 8,527.44                    4,862.73             

Add: Net profit for the year 3,168.29                    3,667.64             

Less: transferred from / (transferred to) statutory reserves 2.93                           (2.93)                   

Closing balance 11,698.66                  8,527.44             

(d) Statutory Reserves

Opening balance 2.93                           -                      

Transfer from profit and loss account (2.93)                          2.93                    

Closing balance -                             2.93                    

Total reserves and surplus (a+b+c+d) 13,835.98                  10,849.17           

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

5  Long-term borrowings

 Secured

Term Loans

- from banks [Refer note 5.1 (a)] 464.03                  -                     317.52                       -                      

- from other parties [Refer note 5.1(b)] 3,122.61               -                     307.12                       -                      

Finance lease obligations [Refer note 5.1(c)] 1,657.65               -                     1,132.32                    -                      

Total 5,244.29               -                     1,756.96                    -                      

Less:

 Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 8) (271.06)                -                     (131.17)                      -                      

 Current maturities of finance lease obligations (Refer note 10) (602.92)                -                     (401.64)                      -                      

Total long-term borrowings 4,370.31               -                     1,224.15                    -                      

5.1 Terms of repayment and details of security

Secured loans

(a) Term loans from banks

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(c ) Finance lease obligation

(i)

(ii)

As at As at 

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

6 Other long-term liabilities

Security deposits 54.00 222.38

Total other long-term liabilities 54.00 222.38

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Obligations under finance lease of the Holding Company carry interest rates ranging from 10.95 p.a. % to 13.00% p.a. (31 March 2022: 10.95% p.a. to

13.00% p.a.) and are repayable in 4 to 42 monthly remaining installments. These obligations are secured against vehicles, computers and office equipment

purchased under finance lease.

Term loans from banks of the Holding Company carry interest rates ranging from 10.50% p.a. to 11.00% p.a. (31 March 2022: 10.50% p.a.) and are

repayable in 28 to 47 monthly remaining installments. These loans are secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles procured from these loans. 

(b) Term loans from other parties

Term Loans from other parties of the the Holding Company carry interest rates ranging from 10.25 to 13.50 % (31 March 2022: 10.95 % to 13.50%) and are

repayable in 7 to 54 monthly remaining installments. These loans are secured by way of hypothecation of the Holding Company's vehicle procured from these

loans.

As at 31 March 2023

Term loan from other parties of one of the Subsidiaries carries an interest rate of 12 % p.a. (31 March 2022: 12% p.a.) and is repayable in 48 equal monthly

remaining installments. The loan is secured by the personal guarantee of one of the directors of the Holding Company.

Obligations under finance lease of one of the Subsidiaries carry an interest rate of 10.95% p.a.(31 March 2022 10.95% p.a.) and are repayable in 6 quarterly

remaining installments. These obligations are secured against the computers purchased under the finance lease and the fixed deposits.

Term loans from banks of one of the Subsidiaries carry interest rates ranging from 6.28 % p.a. to 6.47 % p.a. (31 March 2022: 7.16% p.a.) and are repayable

in 16 to 47 monthly remaining installments. These loans are secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles procured from these loans.
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

7 Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 31)

Provision for gratuity 1,505.94               170.93               1,785.73                    235.80                

Provision for leave entitlement -                       706.05               -                             929.51                

Provision for income tax -                       130.46               -                             -                      

Total provisions 1,505.94               1,007.44            1,785.73                    1,165.31             

As at As at

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

8 Short-term borrowings

Secured 

484.09                       495.66                

- Current portion of long-term borrowings (Refer note 5) 271.06                       131.17                

Unsecured 

- from other party [Refer note 8.1(b) below] 570.76                       2,503.81             

Total Short-Term borrowings 1,325.91                    3,130.64             

8.1 Terms of repayment and details of security

(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured

8.2

Year ended 31 March 2023

 June 2022 Inventory                   228.00                228.00              -   

Trade Receivables*                7,231.67             7,223.00           8.67 

Other current assets                2,657.00             2,657.00 

             -   

 March 2023 Inventory                   173.00                173.00              -   

Trade Receivables*                4,829.67             5,195.00     (365.33)

Other current assets                1,637.07             2,656.15  (1,019.08)

Year ended 31 March 2022

 September 2021 Inventory                   245.00                245.00              -   

Trade Receivables*                5,442.00             5,538.00       (96.00)

Other current assets                6,216.00             6,216.00              -   

 December 2021 Inventory                   273.00                273.00              -   

Trade Receivables*                7,525.00             7,525.00              -   

Other current assets                5,527.00             6,776.00  (1,249.00)

Inventory                   175.75                190.00       (14.25)

Trade Receivables*                7,556.96             7,704.00     (147.04)

Other current assets                1,830.79             1,841.00       (10.21)

No other company in the Group has availed borrowings from banks on security of current assets 

 

Difference 

 March 2022

Reason for material variances

Reason for material variances

The difference is due to submissions

being made provisonal financial

information prior to the Holding

Company's financial reporting closure

process.

The difference is due to submissions

being made provisonal financial

information prior to the Holding

Company's financial reporting closure

process.

The difference is due to submissions

being made provisonal financial

information prior to the Holding

Company's financial reporting closure

process.

Quarter ended Particulars

Amount as per 

books of 

accounts

 Amount 

reported in the 

quarterly return/ 

statement 

 

Difference 

(*) Trade receivables considered for this statement are only where the ageing is less than 6 months pursuant to agreement entered with the 

The difference is due to submissions

being made provisonal financial

information prior to the Holding

Company's financial reporting closure

process.

The difference is due to submissions

being made provisonal financial

information prior to the Holding

Company's financial reporting closure

process.

Cash credit facilities carry interest rates ranging from 9.80% to 11.15% p.a. (31 March 2022: 9.80% to 13.15% p.a.) and are secured by way of hypothecation

of the Holding Company's trade receivables, unencumbered Property, plant & equipment and collateral securities of personal assets of promoters and their

relatives. The cash credits are repayable on demand.

Disclosure pursuant to the requirement as specified under Para 6(Y)(vii) of of General Instructions for Preparation of Balance Sheet of Schedule III to the Act.

 As at 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Loans from other parties of one of the Subsidiaries carry interest rates of 12% p.a. (31 March 2022: 18.00% p.a.) and are repayable on demand. These loans

are secured by the personal guarantee of one of the Directors of the Holding Company.

- Cash credit facilities from banks [Refer note 8.1(a) below]

Quarter ended Particulars

Amount as per 

books of 

accounts

 Amount 

reported in the 

quarterly return/ 

statement 
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

As at As at 

9 Trade payables  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

 - total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises ('MSME') 20.43                         2.97                    

 - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprises 2,222.75                    2,854.99             

Total Trade Payables 2,243.18                    2,857.96             

9.1 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises to the extent information available with the Group is given below:

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of year

-  Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 20.43                     2.97                

- Interest due -                         -                  

-                         -                  

-                         -                  

-                         -                  

-                         -                  

9.2 Trade payables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2023:

Particulars Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME -                            20.43                    -                     -           -                             20.43                  

(ii) Others 565.47                      1,097.46               485.43               66.82       7.57                           2,222.75             

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                            -                       -                     -           -                             -                      

(iv) Disputed dues - others -                            -                       -                     -           -                             -                      

Total 565.47                      1,117.89               485.43               66.82       7.57                           2,243.18             

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME -                            2.97                      -                     -           -                             2.97                    

(ii) Others 614.34                      1,786.89               76.50                 360.32     16.96                         2,854.99             

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                            -                       -                     -           -                             -                      

(iv) Disputed dues - others -                            -                       -                     -           -                             -                      

Total 614.34                      1,789.86               76.50                 360.32     16.96                         2,857.96             

As at As at

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

10 Other current liabilities

Current maturities of finance lease obligations (Refer note 5) 602.92                       401.64                

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 17.28                         2.21                    

Liability for capital goods -                             151.60                

Employee related dues 3,667.45                    2,739.65             

Statutory dues payable 670.11                       510.45                

Deposits payable 559.17                       515.14                

Advance received from customers 0.05                           69.90                  

Total other current liabilities 5,516.98                    4,390.59             

Outstanding from following period from the transaction date

Outstanding from following period from the transaction date

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified

under the MSMED Act, 2006.

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with

the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting

year.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

13 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets arising on account of:

- Expenses allowable on payment basis 697.19             738.47               

- Timing difference on tangible and intangible assets 246.47             214.23               

- Benefits arising on account of additional deduction in future years 303.50             140.17               

Total deferred tax assets 1,247.16          1,092.87            

5738.01

28.42                                                                      

5766.43 Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

14 Loans and advances

Capital advances 523.89          -               185.32             -                     

Loans to related parties -                130.79         -                   -                     

153.67          -               1,480.37          -                     

Prepaid expenses 60.53            510.51         158.35             581.79               

Advances to suppliers -                291.36         -                   520.46               

Employee advances -                12.11           -                   66.24                 

Other receivables from related parties -                1,006.90      -                   -                     

Total loans and advances 738.09          1,951.68      1,824.04          1,168.49            

Loans and advances

- Secured, considered good -                -               -                   -                     

- Unsecured, considered good 738.09          1,951.68      2,004.45          1,207.44            

- Doubtful -                -               -                   -                     

738.09          1,951.68      2,004.45          1,207.44            

15 Other non-current assets As at As at

(Unsecured, considered good)  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 357.73             594.39               

Interest accrued 10.47               14.26                 

Security and other deposits 630.05             180.41               

Other receivables from customers -                   -                     

Balance with government authorities 21.56               21.56                 

Total other non-current assets 1,019.81          810.62               

16 Current investments

Unquoted

Investments in mutual funds

Investment in Mutual Funds (valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value): 

Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Option Nil (31 March 2022 : 12,70,046 units) -                   651.55               

Nippon India Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan Nil (31 March 2022 : 79,906.136 units) -                   88.71                 

SBI Multicap Fund Regular Plan Growth 24,998.75 units (31 March 2022: 24998.75 units) 2.50                 2.50                   

Total current investments 2.50                 742.76               

Details:

Aggregate of non-current investments:

 (i) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof -                   -                     

(ii) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments; 2.50                 742.76               

(iii) Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments -                   -                     

17 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Stock-in-trade -                   5.41                   

Consumables 221.45             213.58               

Total inventories 221.45             218.99               

18 Trade receivables

- Secured, considered good -                   -                     

- Unsecured, considered good 10,327.40        11,143.80          

- Doubtful -                   -                     

- Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -                   -                     

Total trade receivables 10,327.40        11,143.80          

Notes:

(a)

(b) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022As at 31 March 2023

Advance tax and tax deducted at source

[net of tax provisions of ₹ 5,766.43 lakhs (31 March 2021 : ₹ 4,724.97 Lakhs)]

There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Group, either severally or jointly with any other person, or from any firms or private 

companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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Trade receivables ageing schedule:

(c) As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Unbilled
Less Than 6 

months

6 months 

to 1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years Above 3 years Total

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 1,360.26 6,567.76        1,085.06   723.10          -               323.79             10,059.97          

Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -                 -            -                -               -                   -                     

Disputed trade receivables - considered good -          -                 -            1,071.34       556.35         -                   1,627.69            

Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -                 -            -                -               -                   -                     

Total 1,360.26 6,567.76 1,085.06   1,794.44       556.35         323.79             11,687.66          

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Unbilled
Less Than 6 

months

6 months 

to 1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years Above 3 years Total

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 1,273.78 9,451.26        778.99      608.63          -               304.91             12,417.58          

Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -                 -            -                -               -                   -                     

Disputed trade receivables - considered good -          -                 -            -                -               -                   -                     

Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -                 -            -                -               -                   -                     

Total 1,273.78 9,451.26 778.99      608.63          -               304.91             12,417.58          

 ̂In the absence of due date of payment, the ageing disclosure has been provided based on the date of transaction 

(d) Refer Note 21 for details of the unbilled revenue

 As at  As at 

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

19 Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks - in current accounts 3,502.22          2,174.19            

Cash on hand 1.72                 4.83                   

3,503.94          2,179.02            

(b) Other bank balances

Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 5,568.83          2,071.56            

[held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantee and other commitments of the Group]

Total cash and bank balances 9,072.77          4,250.58            

20 Other current assets

Unbilled revenue 1,360.26          1,273.78            

Security and other deposits 175.45             38.94                 

Interest receivable 134.94             74.41                 

Other receivables from customers 29.69               460.78               

Total other current assets 1,700.34          1,847.91            

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Outstanding from following period from the date of transaction^

Outstanding from following period from the date of transaction^
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended

21 Revenue from operations 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sale of services 51,172.00             66,810.76               

Sale of products 124.41                  42.76                      

Total revenue from operations 51,296.41             66,853.52               

22 Other income

Interest income 

- on fixed deposits with banks 218.90 115.50                    

- on income tax refund 51.96 17.69                      

- on others 18.88 -                          

289.74 133.19

Provision no longer required written back 141.49 17.15                      

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 13.48 18.85                      

Gain on sale of mutual funds 17.64 16.48                      

Foreign exchange gain (net) 0.90 0.37                        

Miscellaneous income 22.90 11.37                      

Total other income 486.15                  197.41                    

23 Cost of services

Ambulance hire charges [Refer note 34(a)] 4,411.13               13,981.74               

Ambulance fuel charges 11,397.48             13,675.31               

Ambulance repairs charges 2,599.19               2,555.35                 

Medical consultancy charges 139.01                  169.05                    

Ambulance communication and tracking charges 188.32                  286.78                    

Medical supplies and consumables 376.23                  761.69                    

Ambulance insurance 454.72                  593.11                    

Total cost of services 19,566.08             32,023.03               

24 Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade at the beginning of the year 5.41                      24.19                      

Stock-in-trade at the end of the year -                        (5.41)                       

Total decrease in inventory of stock-in-trade 5.41                      18.78                      

25 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 18,810.03             22,542.90               

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 31) 1,724.20               2,099.93                 

Leave entitlement (Refer note 31) 175.19                  225.07                    

Gratuity expenses (Refer note 31) 568.57                  663.62                    

Staff welfare expenses 155.23                  135.94                    

Total employee benefits expense 21,433.22             25,667.46               

26 Finance costs

Interest expenses:

- on loans from bank 38.38                    26.93                      

    - on loans from other parties 358.48                  426.94                    

    - on delayed payment of statutory dues 131.77                  0.66                        

  - on finance leased assets 211.24                  160.15                    

Other borrowing costs 193.09                  159.32                    

Total finance costs 932.96                  774.01                    

27 Depreciation and amortisation (Refer note 11)

Depreciation on tangible assets 1,040.93               788.07                    

Amortisation of intangible assets 168.85                  117.42                    

Total depreciation and amortisation 1,209.78               905.49                    

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial 

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

28 Other expenses

Advertisement and marketing expenses 219.99                      250.37                         

Travelling and conveyance 456.98                      427.72                         

Repairs and maintenance - others 496.07                      275.65                         

Legal and professional fees 998.17                      1,072.30                      

Directors' sitting fees 44.00                        48.50                           

Telephone expenses 211.17                      258.54                         

Payment to auditors 57.69                        40.84                           

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 79.07                        56.46                           

Rent [Refer note 34(a)] 255.46                      237.36                         

Rates and taxes 301.71                      94.69                           

Electricity charges 94.62                        118.80                         

Recruitment charges 18.53                        10.91                           

Printing and stationery 34.22                        102.00                         

Postage and courier expenses 40.38                        45.88                           

Prior period expenses 181.75                      -                               

Training expenses 60.89                        10.91                           

Bad debts written off 180.72                      384.62                         

Security charges 110.02                      152.42                         

Miscellaneous expenses 86.58                        65.43                           

Total other expenses 3,928.02                   3,653.40                      

29 Earnings per share ('EPS')

Basic and diluted EPS

A. Profit computation for basic earnings per share of ₹10 each

Net profit as per the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss available for  

equity shareholders (₹ lakhs) 3,168.29                   3,667.64                      

B. Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS computation (Nos.) 412,661                    412,661                       

C. EPS - Basic (in ₹) 767.77                      888.78                         

        - Diluted (in ₹) 767.77                      888.78                         

As at As at

30 Contingent liabilities and commitments 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1

(i) Contingent liabilities

a. Service tax matters pending in appeal 287.42                      287.42

b. Bonus payable 191.37                      191.37

c. Income tax matters pending in appeals                  - 619.1

d.

Note:

(ii) Other Commitments

a. Capital Commitments (net of advances)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for 

the year ended  31 March 2023

Based on the judgment by the Honorable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is not determinable at

present, in view of uncertainty on the applicability of the judgment to the Group with respect to timing and the components of its

compensation structure. In absence of further clarification, the Group has been legally advised to await further developments in this

matter to reasonably assess the implications on its financial statements, if any.

It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the

respective proceedings. Future cash outflows in respect of the above are determinable only on receipt of judgments/ decisions pending

with various forums/ authorities. The Group does not expect any outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no

provision is made in respect thereof.
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 In accordance with Accounting Standard 15 Employee Benefits, the requisite disclosures are as follows:

(i) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss during the year:

Current Service cost 438.52                442.74

Interest cost on benefit obligation 126.45                87.29

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised during the year (91.35)                 96.28

Gratuity expenses included under employee benefits expense 473.62                626.31               

(b) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Opening defined benefit obligation towards gratuity 1,923.53             1,394.51            

Interest cost 126.45                87.29                 

Current service cost 438.52                442.74               

Benefits paid (894.38)               (97.29)                

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation (91.35)                 96.28                 

Closing defined benefit obligation 1,502.77             1,923.53            

(c) Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,502.77             1,923.53

Less: fair value of plan assets -                      -                     

Net liability 1,502.77             1,923.53            

(d) Actuarial assumptions as the balance sheet date are as under:

Discount rate as at year end 7.35% to 7.41% 6.26%

Mortality rate
Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) Urban

Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 

Ultimate

Salary escalation 5% to 6% 5%

Attrition rate 10% to 14% 14%

(e)

2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

Defined Benefit Obligation    1,502.77    1,923.53        1,394.51                  934.01                 560.48 

Plan Assets               -                 -                    -                           -                       0.35 

Net Deficit    1,502.77    1,923.53        1,394.51                  934.01                 560.13 

              -                 -                    -                      (0.37)                        -   

       (54.47)       141.67           200.86                    45.67                   26.34 

Leave Entitlement

(ii) Defined Contribution Plans

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The amount recognised as an expense for the defined contribution plans is as under: 

Contribution to Provident fund 1,246.99             1,512.74

Contribution to Employee State Insurance 470.87                579.11

Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 6.34                    8.08

1,724.20             2,099.93            

The amount of provision with respect to leave entitlement is ₹ 706.05 lakhs (31 March 2022:₹ 929.51 lakhs) is presented as current,

since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past

experience, the Group does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12

months. The expense recognised during the year towards leave encashment is ₹ 175.19 lakhs. (31 March 2022: ₹ 225.07 lakhs)

Gratuity expense for the current year includes expenses aggregating ₹ 94.95 lakhs (31 March 2022: ₹ 37.31 lakhs) which have not been

valued by an actuary. Further long-term provision for gratuity as at 31 March 2023 also includes ₹ 174.10 lakhs (31 March 2022:  

₹ 333.80 lakhs) which have not been calculated on actuarial basis.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for

the year ended 31 March 2023

The Group has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity

on retirement at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of an

actuarial valuation made at the end of the financial year in compliance with Accounting Standard 15 - Employee Benefits:

The amount of defined benefit obligation, plan assets, the deficit thereof and the experience adjustments on plan assets and

plan liabilities for the current and previous four years are as follows:

Particulars

Experience adjustments on plan assets

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
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32 Related party disclosures

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship

(a)

Shaffi Mather

Manjula Easwaran

Amitabh Jaipuria

Surendra Agarwal

(b) 

(i) Companies in which Key Management Personnel or their relatives have significant influence

       Ambulance Access for All (AAA) Foundation

       Kingdom Developers Private Limited

       City Heights India Private Limited

       M/s Murgency International FZE

       M/s M M C Millenium Medical Centre LLC

       M/s Ziqitza GMRAS - Sole Proprietorship

(B) Transaction during the year

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Remuneration to KMP (Refer note 1 below)

Amitabh Jaipuria -                    121.67              

Surendra Agarwal 90.99                77.22                

Manjula Easwaran 25.30                -                    

116.29              198.89              

Other finance charges (Collateral Fees)

KMI Mather 37.82                -                    

37.82                -                    

Reimbursement of expenses

Amitabh Jaipuria -                    0.34                  

Surendra Agarwal -                    0.55                  

Shaffi Mather 33.13                -                    

33.13                0.89                  

Loans given

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 130.00              -                    

130.00              -                    

Interest on loans given 

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 0.79                  -                    

0.79                  -                    

Security Deposits given

City Heights India Private Limited 500.00              -                    

500.00              -                    

Advance paid to Related Parties

M/s MMC Millenium Medical Center LLC 950.13              325.87              

M/s Ziqitza GMRAS - Sole Proprietorship 751.61              15.61                

1,701.74           341.48              

Expenses booked against Related Parties

M/s MMC Millenium Medical Center LLC 710.36              319.64              

M/s Ziqitza GMRAS - Sole Proprietorship 33.72                -                    

744.08              319.64              

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as 

at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Key Management Personnel (‘KMP’)

Director

Company Secretary 

Chief Executive Officer (resigned w.e.f. 28 February 2022)

Chief Financial Officer (resigned w.e.f. 30 June 2023)

(ii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

       KMI Mather

Particulars

Other related parties
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as 

at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Loans Taken

M/s Murgency International FZE 118.71              57.89                

Shafi Mather 643.96              269.37              

762.67              327.26              

Repayment of Loans Taken

M/s Murgency International FZE 40.89                -                    

Shafi Mather 664.34              420.70              

705.23              420.70              

Interest on Loans Taken

M/s Murgency International FZE 41.17                71.97                

Shafi Mather 5.96                  16.48                

47.13                88.45                

C) Outstanding balances:

Loan given 

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 130.79              -                    

130.79              -                    

Other Payables

Shaffi Mather 18.46                -                    

KMI Mather 6.75                  -                    

25.21                -                    

Security Deposit given

City Heights India Private Limited 500.00              -                    

500.00              -                    

Loans taken

M/s Murgency International FZE 498.52              386.09              

Shafi Mather 72.24                86.34                

570.76              472.43              

Due from Related party

M/s MMC Millenium Medical Center LLC 244.04              -                    

M/s Ziqitza GMRAS - Sole Proprietorship 762.86              -                    

1,006.90           -                    

Notes:  

1 Does not include the provisional liability for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the 

Company as a whole.
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33

34 Operating and Finance Lease

(b) Finance Lease 

MLP Present value 

of MLP

MLP Present value 

of MLPNot later than one year                     824.54 602.92                               551.36 401.64           

Later than one year but not later than 5 years                  1,346.66 1,051.44                            864.30 730.68           

Later than five years                         3.34 3.29                                           -   -                 

                 2,174.54 1,657.65                         1,415.66          1,132.32 

35

Outside India India 

Revenue from operations          1,820.73                64,236.99 

Non- current assets             237.71                  5,986.71 

36

(a)Operating Lease

The Group has taken various vehicles/residential/commercial premises on cancellable operating lease. These lease agreements are

normally renewed on expiry. Rental expenses in the Statement of profit and loss for the year include lease payments ₹ 4,666.59 lakhs

(31 March 2022: ₹ 14,219.11 lakhs).

The future minimum lease payments (‘MLP’) under finance leases is ₹ 2,174.54 lakhs (31 March 2022 ₹ 1,415.66 lakhs) 

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at 

and for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Central Bureau of Investigation (‘CBI’) filed a charge sheet on 4 June 2018 at the CBI Special Court against the Holding Company,

two former Directors of the Holding Company and an ex-employee (together hereinafter referred as the ‘accused’) in connection with

certain irregularities / investigations pertaining to the tender, award and execution of the 108 Ambulance Services contract in the state of

Rajasthan wherein it has been alleged that the accused have caused a loss to the Government Exchequer by wrongfully claiming

excess payments of ₹ 62.75 lakhs from National Rural Health Mission (NHRM), Rajasthan. While it has been alleged that the accused

have wrongly caused loss to the Government Exchequer aggregating ₹ 62.75 lakhs for which discharge application are pending hearing

in the CBI Court. Further, the Holding Company has received favorable award aggregating ₹ 1,818.26 lakhs from the Committee for

Settlement of Disputes which have been further upheld by Hon’ble Additional District Court, Jaipur. Additionally, during the current year,

the Holding Company has also initiated arbitration proceedings under the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 for settling additional

claims aggregating to approximately ₹ 3,500 lakhs.

The Directorate of Enforcement (‘ED’) had alleged involvement in money laundering to the extent of ₹ 2,392.34 lakhs in earlier years

and therefore attached certain immovable property, fixed assets, fixed deposits with banks and immovable properties of certain

promoters/ex-directors of the Holding Company under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 (‘PMLA’). Subsequently in

September 2019, the Appellate Tribunal (under PMLA), directed the attachments are liable to be secured only to the extent of ₹ 62.75

lakhs. The Holding Company during the current year has deposited a fixed deposit of ₹ 62.75 lakhs with the ED to secure the order as

directed. Consequently, in the absence of filing of the original complaint by ED or an appeal against the Appellant Tribunal order dated

September 2019, the Holding Company believes that there are no on-going proceedings in respect of this matter.

The Holding Company in January 2021 had received a notice of demand for ₹ 2,392.34 lakhs under Maharashtra Land Revenue Act for

executing a notice under Section 6 of the Rajasthan Public Debt Recovery Act (‘RPDR’). Tahsildar, Mumbai issued a Warrant of

Attachment to execute the above-mentioned notice and initiated attachment proceedings on the Holding Company Office on 18

February 2021 against which the Holding Company preferred an appeal. However on 18 February 2021, Tahsildar Mumbai suo moto

had removed the attachment imposed by them on the Holding Company Office based on Additional Director (Recovery) Jaipur order

dated 5 May 2021 (copy of order received by the Holding Company during the current year), concluding appeal before of Additional

Director (Recovery) Jaipur in favour of the Holding Company.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its meeting held on 24 March 2023 has approved a Scheme of Arrangement between

the Holding Company and its wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Zenplus Private Limited , for the demerger of the entire business undertaking

of the Holding Company except for undertaking relating to the state of Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh along with assets and liabilities

relating thereto on a going concern basis. The appointed date proposed in the Scheme is 1 April 2022. Pending the receipt of requisite

approvals including shareholders of the Holding Company and Mumbai Bench of National Company Law Tribunal, no adjustment are

made in the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The activities of the Group comprise of only one business segment viz providing of ambulance services and health/ safety helplines. 

The following information discloses external revenue and non- current assets based on the physical location of the customers.

 As at and for the year ended

 31 March 2022 

 As at and for the year ended

 31 March 2023 
Particulars

India 

                     49,475.68 

                       6,384.86 

Outside India

2,616.53               

286.40                  
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37 Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2023

As % of

consolidated

net assets

Amount

As % of

consolidated

profit/ (loss)

Amount

Parent Company

Ziqitza Health Care Limited 107.65%      14,939.38 42.15%           1,335.30 

Subsidiaries

Indian

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 9.58%        1,329.01 41.36%           1,310.38 

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 0.86%           119.60 2.12%                67.10 

Zenplus Private Limited -0.02%              (2.87) -0.12%                 (3.87)

Foreign

Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services PTE. Limited 0.94%           130.32                (0.00)                 (4.05)

Ziqitza Gulf Medical Responses and Ambulance Services -15.83%       (2,197.19) -4.31%             (136.56)

Total 103.18% 14,318.24     81.06% 2,568.29          

 a) Adjustments arising out of consolidation -3.18%          (441.00) 18.94%              599.99 

b) Non-controlling interest in subsidiary - -               -                      -   

100.00%      13,877.25 100.00%           3,168.29 

As at 31 March 2022

As % of

consolidated

net assets

Amount

As % of

consolidated

profit/ (loss)

Amount

Parent Company

Ziqitza Health Care Limited 124.92%      13,604.09 98.80%           3,623.52 

Subsidiaries

Indian

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 0.17%             18.63 0.49%                18.02 

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 0.48%             52.49 0.20%                  7.22 

Foreign

Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services PTE. Limited 1.37%           149.48 -0.28%               (10.42)

Ziqitza Gulf Medical Responses and Ambulance Services -17.40%       (1,894.54) 0.80%                29.34 

Total 109.55% 11,930.15     100.00% 3,667.68          

 a) Adjustments arising out of consolidation -9.55%       (1,039.71) 0.00%                 (0.04)

b) Non-controlling interest in subsidiary - -               -                      -   

100.00%      10,890.44 100.00%           3,667.64 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year 

ended 31 March 2023

Name of entity consolidated

Net assets i.e. total assets less 

total liabilities
Share in Profit / (Loss)

Name of entity consolidated

Net assets i.e. total assets less 

total liabilities
Share in Profit / (Loss)
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38 Other Statutory Information

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

a)

b)

vi)

a)

b)

vii)

viii)

ix)

x)

39

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information referred to in our audit report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok and Co LLP

Chartered Accountants Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Firm Registration No: 001076N / N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No: 109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place: Dubai Place: Cochin

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN No: ACS No: A13858

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on the current or previous financial year.

Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to conform to current period's classification.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries); or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income

Tax Act, 1961.

The Group has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate

Beneficiaries); or

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year 

ended 31 March 2023

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami

property.

The Group does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Members of Ziqitza Health Care Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ziqitza Health Care Limited (‘the Company’), 

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 
 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, 
read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 
 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 

 

4. We draw attention Note 36 to the accompanying standalone financial statements which describes the on-going 
litigation pursuant to the charge sheet filed by Central Bureau of Investigation (‘CBI’) against the Company and its past 

directors and employees relating to the allegations of certain irregularities in the contract referred to in the said note. 
Based on the legal advice obtained by the Company from its legal counsel, management is of the view that no 
adjustments are required to be made to the accompanying standalone financial statements. Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of this matter. 
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Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 

5. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s 

report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 
 

6. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The 

Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 

preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

8. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:  

 

i. The Company, as detailed in note 31 and 36 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the impact 

of pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2023.;  

 

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023.; 

 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023; 

ii.  

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 

43 (v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 

Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly 

or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 

43 (vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from 

any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management 

representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 

 

iii. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

iv. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use 

accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software which 

has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly, 

reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not 

applicable for the current financial year. 

 

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 

 

 

 

 

Rakesh R. Agarwal 

Partner 

Membership No.: 109632 

 

UDIN: 23109632BGXEDR4049 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 24 August 2023 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management; 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

 
11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

12. Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the 
year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable. 
 

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India 

in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 
and 5 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

14. Further to our comments in Annexure I, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the 
extent applicable, that: 
 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements; 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books; 
 

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021; 
 

e) The matter described in paragraph 4 under the Emphasis of Matter section, in our opinion, may have an adverse 
effect on the functioning of the Company; 

 
f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of section 164(2) of the Act; 

 
g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 

Company as on 31 March 2023 and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
Annexure II wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and 
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Annexure I referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members 

of Ziqitza Health Care Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we 
report that: 
 
(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 
 
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.  

 
(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the 

year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the 
frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  
    

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties 
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee) disclosed in note 11 to the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the 
Company. 

 
(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during 

the year. 
 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and 
rules made thereunder. 

(ii)  (a) The management has conducted physical verification of the inventories at reasonable interval 
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such verification by the 
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
class of inventory were noticed. 

 
(b) As disclosed in note 8 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a 

working capital limit in excess of ₹ 500 lakhs by banks based on the security of current assets. The 
quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company 
with such banks or financial institutions and such returns/statements are in agreement with the books 
of account of the Company for the respective periods which were not subject to audit/review, except 
for the following: 

                         
(₹ in lakhs) 

Name of 
the Bank / 
financial 
institution 

Working 
capital 
limit 
sanction
-ed 

Quarter 

Nature of 
current 
assets 

offered as 
security 

Amount 
disclosed 

as per 
return 

Amount 
as per 

books of 
accounts 

Differen
-ce 

Remarks/ 
reason, if any 

State 
Bank of 

India 

500.00 

June 
2022 

Trade 
Receivables* 

7,223.00 7,231.67 (8.67) The difference is 
due to the 
submissions 
being made 
basis provisional 
financial 
information prior 
to the Company's 
financial 
reporting closure 
process 

Inventories 228.00 228.00 - 

Other Current 
Assets 

2.657.00 2.657.00 - 

March 
2023 

Trade 
Receivables* 

5,195.17 4,829.67 365.33 

Inventories 173.00 173.00 - 

Other Current 
Assets 

2,656.15 1,637.07 1,019.08 

  
(*) Trade receivables considered for this Statement are only where the ageing is less than 6 months pursuant 
to agreement entered with the bank.  
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(iii) 

 

(a) The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted advances in the 

nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has granted loans to a subsidiary and 

others as per details given below: 

                                                                                                                    (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars Loans 

Aggregate amount during the year 

- Subsidiary 

- Others 

 

2,344.01 

80.00 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases: 

- Subsidiary 

- Others 

 

1,028.25 

80.00 

 

(b) The Company has not provided any guarantee during the year. However, in our opinion, and 

according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, security 

given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of 

loans are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

 

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the schedule 

of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the 

repayments/receipts of principal, where demanded, and interest are regular. 

 

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to 

such companies, firms, LLP’s or other parties. 

 

(e) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has fallen due 

during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue 

loans/advances in nature of loan that existed as at the beginning of the year. 

 

(f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, as per details below. 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties 

Aggregate of loans repayable on demand 2,424.01 - 2,424.01 

Percentage of loans/advances in 

nature of loan to the total loans 

100% - 100% 

 

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments made, 

as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 

185. 

 

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits 

within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 

Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 

of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services/ business activities. 

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 (vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory 

dues including goods and services tax, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, cess and other material 

statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, 

though provident fund, employees’ state insurance and professional tax have not generally been 

regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there have been significant delays in a large 

number of cases. Undisputed amounts payables in respect thereof, which were outstanding at the 

year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable are as follows: 
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Statement of arrears of statutory dues outstanding for more than six months: 
 

Name of the 
statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Amount 
(₹ in 

lakhs) 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Due Date Remarks, if any 

The Employees 
Provident Fund 
and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 
1952 
 

Provident 
Fund 
 

34.65 
July 2017 to 
March 2021 

15th of 
subsequent 
month 

₹ 14.79 lakhs paid 
in June 2023 

9.52 
April 2021 to 
March 2022 

15th of 
subsequent 
month 

₹ 7.94 lakhs paid 
in June 2023 

12.65 
April 2022 to 
August 2022 

15th of 
subsequent 
month 

₹ 9.23 lakhs paid 
in June 2023 

The Payment of 
Bonus Act, 1952 
 

Bonus 
 

12.87 FY 2015-16 31 March 2019 Not yet paid 

7.66 FY 2016-17 31 March 2020 Not yet paid 

4.81 FY 2017-18 31 March 2021 Not yet paid 

35.81 FY 2018-19 31 March 2022 Not yet paid 

 
 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred 

in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of 
any dispute except for the following: 
 

Name of the 
statute 

Nature of 
dues 

Gross 
Amount  
(₹ In 
lakhs) 

Amount paid  
under Protest/ 
Amount retained 
by authorities  
(₹ In lakhs) 

Period to 
which the 
amount relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

The Finance Act, 
1994 

Service 
Tax 

287.42 21.56  
October 2012 
to March 2015 

Appellate 
Tribunal 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income 
Tax 

311.18  244.81  FY 2017-18 CIT (Appeals) 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income 
Tax 

307.92  307.92  FY 2018-19 CIT (Appeals) 

 
(viii)     According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts. 
 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.  
 

       (b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received 
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that 
the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by 

way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.  

 
(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short-term 
basis have not been utilised for long-term purposes.  
 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.  

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary. 153
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(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during 
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xi)(a)  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 

by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period 
covered by our audit.  
 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by 
the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been 
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.  

 
(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by 

the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year. 

 
(xii)   The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, 
where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
standalone financial statements, as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party 
Disclosures specified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as prescribed under section 
133 of the Act.  

 
(xiv)  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an 

internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

 
(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period 
under audit. 
 

(xv)   According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act 
are not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xvi)    The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

  
(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of 
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) 
does not have any CIC. 
 

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding financial 
year. 

 
(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under 

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 

and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors 
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 
(xx) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred unspent 

amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of other than ongoing projects to a 
Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial 
year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount pertaining to 

any ongoing project as at end of the current financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 

statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under 
this report. 

 
 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 
 
 
 
 
 
Rakesh R. Agarwal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 109632 
 
UDIN: 23109632BGXEDR4049 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24 August 2023 
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Chartered Accountants 

 

Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Dehradun, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune  

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with limited liability with 

identification number AAC-2085 and has its registered office at L-
41, Connaught Circus, Outer Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India 

Annexure II 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
  

 
1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Ziqitza Health Care Limited (‘the Company’) as 

at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements of the Company as at that date. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls 
 

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements  
 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 
ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements, and the the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements  
 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements  
 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion  
 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 
 
 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP   
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 
 
 
 
Rakesh R. Agarwal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 109632 
 
UDIN: 23109632BGXEDR4049 
 
Place Mumbai 
Date: 24 August 2023  
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Particulars
Note 

No.

 As at

31 March 2023

 As at

31 March 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

Share capital 3 41.27                  41.27                     

Reserves and surplus 4 14,898.11           13,562.81              

14,939.38           13,604.08              

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5 1,847.42             1,062.68                

Other long-term liabilities 6 54.00                  222.38                   

Long-term provisions 7 1,241.07             1,652.12                

3,142.49             2,937.18                

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 8 723.41                608.00                   

Trade payables 9

5.02                    -                        

1,505.15             2,406.73                

    and small enterprises 
Other current liabilities 10 4,918.26             3,791.60                

Short-term provisions 7 774.39                1,122.82                

7,926.23             7,929.15                

Total 26,008.10           24,470.41              

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

- Property, plant and equipment 11 2,718.60             1,882.70                

- Intangible assets 11 245.84                316.15                   

Capital work-in-progress 12 447.50                17.60                     

Non-current investments 13 253.28                852.28                   

Deferred tax assets 14 937.21                1,061.74                

Long-term loans and advances 15 713.38                3,484.23                

Other non-current assets 16 1,017.25             248.78                   

6,333.06             7,863.48                

Current assets

Current investments 17 -                      740.26                   

Inventories 18 173.00                175.75                   

Trade receivables 19 7,725.94             9,006.58                

Cash and bank balances 20 8,360.05             4,050.70                

Short-term loans and advances 15 1,778.89             802.85                   

Other current assets 21 1,637.16             1,830.79                

19,675.04           16,606.93              

Total 26,008.10           24,470.41              

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

 - Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises

 - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise 
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This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our audit
 report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No:109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place: Dubai Place: Cochin

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN:01348861 ACS No: A13858

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Ziqitza Health Care Limited
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Revenue from operations 22 42,589.80              61,063.97                  

Other income 23 520.37                   251.05                       

Total Income 43,110.17              61,315.02                  

Expenses

Cost of services 24 16,786.17              30,127.20                  

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 25 -                         12.80                         

Employee benefits expense 26 18,014.65              22,853.30                  

Finance costs 27 594.07                   359.79                       

Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 1,051.37                770.65                       

Other expenses 29 3,190.68                3,231.80                    

Total expenses 39,636.94              57,355.54                  

Profit before tax and exceptional item 3,473.23                3,959.48                    

Exceptional Item - loss 37 (600.00)                  -                             

Profit before tax 2,873.23                3,959.48                    

Tax expenses/ (credit):

 - Current tax (including earlier year adjustments) 1,413.40                584.70                       

 - Deferred tax 124.53                   (248.74)                      

1,537.93                335.96                       

Net profit for the year 1,335.30                3,623.52                    

Earnings per equity share of face value ₹ 10 each : 30

Basic (in ₹) 323.58                   878.09                       

Diluted (in ₹) 323.58                   878.09                       

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No:109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place: Dubai Place: Cochin

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN:01348861 ACS No: A13858

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

Year ended

31 March 2023

Year ended

31 March 2022
Particulars Note 

No.
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Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2023

Year ended

31 March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit before tax 2,873.23                 3,959.48                   

Adjustment for:

Bad debts written-off 132.84                    384.62                      

Imapirment allowance for investment in subsidiary 600.00                    -                            

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 79.07                      56.46                        

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,051.37                 770.65                      

Finance costs 594.07                    359.79                      

Unrealised foreign exchange gain (0.25)                       (0.37)                         

Interest income (376.68)                   (203.82)                    

Provision no longer required written back (94.18)                     (17.15)                       

Gain on sale of mutual fund (17.64)                     (16.48)                       

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (9.53)                       (6.29)                         

Operating profit before working capital changes 4,832.30                 5,286.89                   

Changes in working capital:

Decrease in inventories 2.75                        20.50                        

Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables 1,166.67                 (2,172.38)                 

Decrease/ (Increase) in loans and advances 264.91                    (1,419.60)                 

Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets 344.61                    848.90                      

Decrease in trade payables (975.62)                   (680.82)                    

Increase in other current liabilities 1,000.42                 576.03                      

Increase in provisions (759.48)                   595.61                      

1,044.26                 (2,231.76)                 

Cash generated from operations 5,876.56                 3,055.13                   

Income tax paid (net of refund received) (43.52)                     (1,256.07)                 

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 5,833.04                 1,799.06                   

Cash flow from investing activities: 

(2,752.71)                (1,585.45)                 

22.10                      75.72                        

(3,239.94)                (264.67)                    

757.90                    727.77                      

-                          (651.55)                    

(1.00)                       -                            

248.65                    65.65                        

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (4,965.00)                (1,632.53)                 

Cash flow from financing activities: 

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,545.24                 696.58                      

Repayment of long-term borrowings (441.09)                   (66.11)                       

Proceeds from / (repayment) of short term borrowings (net) (11.57)                     495.66                      

Finance costs paid (582.87)                   (357.58)                    

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 509.71                    768.55                      

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 1,377.75                 935.08                      

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,979.14                 1,044.06                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,356.89                 1,979.14                   

Cash and cash equivalents comprise [Refer note 20 (a)]

Cash on hand 1.25                        3.34                          

Balances with banks - in current accounts 3,355.64                 1,975.80                   
Total cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 3,356.89                 1,979.14                   

Notes :-

3.The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

1.The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard-3, "Cash

Flow Statement"

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary

Interest received 

2. Additions include movement of capital advances and liabilities for capital goods, including intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Investment in bank deposits (having maturity more than three months)

Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds

Investment in mutual funds

161



Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date (Refer Note No 36)

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No:109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place: Dubai Place: Cochin

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN:01348861 ACS No: A13858

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

This is the Standalone Cash Flow Statement referred to in 

our audit report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

162



Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial 

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 

1. Corporate Information 

 

Ziqitza Health Care Limited (‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions 

of the erstwhile Companies Act 1956 (‘the Act 1956’). The Company having CIN U85110MH2002PLC138005 is engaged 

in providing nationwide network of life support ambulance service which includes providing basic life support, advanced 

life support and patient transfer services. The registered office of the Company is located at 23 Floor, Sunshine Tower, 

Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai 400013, India. 

 

These standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized for issue in 

accordance with resolution of Board of Directors on 24 August 2023. 

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 

a. Basis of accounting and preparation of standalone financial statements 

 

The standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards  

specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2021 and other accounting principle generally accepted in India. The standalone financial statements are prepared 

under the historical cost convention, on an accrual basis of accounting. The accounting policies applied are consistent with 

those used in the previous year. 

 

The Company's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency, and 

all values are presented in rupee lakhs (₹ 00,000), except when otherwise indicated. 

 

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating 

cycle of the Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule III to the Act (as amended). 

 

b. Accounting Estimates 

 

The preparation of the standalone financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, 

requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 

and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of standalone financial statements and the results of operation during 

the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and 

actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognized in the period in which they are determined. 

Such changes are reflected in the period in which such changes are made and, if material, are disclosed in the Standalone 

Financial Statements. 

 

c. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till 

the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost includes inward freight, duties, taxes, and incidental expenses related to acquisition / installation up to the point the 

asset is ready for its intended use. 

 Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future 

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 

other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related 

accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the standalone financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from 

active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

d. Capital work-in-progress 

 

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and are carried at cost. 

Cost includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost, borrowing costs capitalized and other direct expenditure. 

 

e. Intangible Assets 

 

Intangible assets comprise of license fees, implementation cost for software and other application software acquired for in-

house use. These assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These assets 

are to be amortized over the period of 3-6 years. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial 

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 

f. Depreciation and amortisation 

 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to expense the cost less residual value over their useful 

lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on a written down value basis.  

 

Intangible assets are amortized from the date they are available for use, over their estimated useful lives. 

 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss when 

the asset is derecognized 

 

Asset Category Useful life in (Years) Basis of determination of useful lives 

Building 60 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Leasehold improvements Lease period or 5 years, 

whichever is lower 

Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Plant and equipment 13 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Furniture and fixtures  10 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Motor vehicles 6 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Office equipment 5 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

Computers 3 Assessed to be in line with Schedule II to the Act. 

  

 

g. Impairment of assets 

 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment based on 

internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss whenever the carrying 

amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the assets (or 

where applicable, that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling 

price and its value-in-use. A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in 

circumstances. However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have 

prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment. 

 

h. Investments 

 

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such 

investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current 

investments. 

 

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost or fair value determined on an individual 

investment basis. Non-current investments are carried at cost and provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a 

decline other than temporary in the value of the investments. Trade investments are the investments made for or to 

enhance/promote the Company’s business interests. 

 

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable 

acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. 

  

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited 

to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

i. Inventories 

 

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value (NRV), whichever is lower. Cost is determined using Weighted 

Average method and includes all applicable cost of bringing the goods to their present location and condition. NRV is the 

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial 

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 

j. Provisions and contingencies 

 

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 

are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on management's estimate required to settle the 

obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 

management estimates. Provisions are recognised in the financial statements in respect of present probable obligations, 

for amounts which can be reliably estimated. 

 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would 

be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company.  

 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the standalone financial statements. 

 

k. Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and cash on hand. The Company considers all highly liquid 

investments with an original maturity of three month or less from date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. 

 

l. Revenue Recognition 

 

Revenue is recognised on rendering of services and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the consideration 

to be received. Revenue is recognised for various services as follows: 

 

i) Revenue from sale of services  

 

Revenue from services rendered is recognized based on the terms of arrangement with its customer and to the extent 

that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and no significant uncertainty exists regarding 

the amount of consideration that will be derived from rendering of service.  

 

ii) Sale of traded goods: 

 

Revenue from sale of traded goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership to the 

buyer as per the terms of sale and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the consideration to be received. 

Revenue is recorded at net of sales tax and trade discounts. 

 

iii) Interest income and other income: 

 

Interest and other income are accounted for on time proportion basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain 

in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis. 

 

m. Employee benefits 

 

i) Defined contribution plan  

 

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance and labour welfare 

fund, etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services 

are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company 

has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions. 

 

ii) Defined benefit plan: Gratuity 

 

The Company provides for gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, liability towards which is determined based on an 

actuarial valuation, as at the balance sheet date, performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit 

method. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of the defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss in the period in which they arise. The classification of the Company’s net obligation into current and non-current 

is as per the actuarial valuation report. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial 

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 

iii) Leave entitlement 

 

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee 

benefit. Leave entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are provided based on an actuarial valuation, 

similar to that of gratuity benefit. However, as the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement 

for these obligations, the above liabilities are presented as current. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and 

losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they 

occur. 

 

iv) Other short-term benefits 

 

Other short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses 

at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss the period in which the related service is rendered. 

Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the absences occur. 

 

n. Earnings per share 

 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other 

than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 

corresponding change in resources. 

 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of 

all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

o. Taxes on Income 

 

i) Current tax 

 

Provision for current tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances 

and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 

compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

 

ii) Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences 

between carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and 

liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet 

dates. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the period that includes 

the enactment date.  

 

Where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is 

virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits. Where there 

is no unabsorbed depreciation/carry forward loss, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is a 

reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess 

realisation. 

  

p. Leases 

 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. 

 

i)  Operating lease 

 

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, 

are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial 

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 

ii) Finance lease  

 

Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as lessee, where the Company has substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Such a lease is capitalised at the inception of the lease 

at lower of the fair value or the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognised for an 

equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a 

constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year. 

 

q. Foreign currency transactions 

 

i) Initial Recognition 

 

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency 

amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

 

ii) Conversion 

 

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items 

which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate 

at the date of the transaction. 

 

iii) Treatment of Exchange Differences 

 

Exchange differences arising on settlement/restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the 

Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

r. Segment reporting 

 

The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business segments. The Company has only 

one business segment, which is providing emergency medical response and ambulance services. Accordingly, the 

amounts appearing in these standalone financial statements relate to this primary business segment. Further, the Company 

generates majority of its income only in India and, accordingly, no disclosures are required under secondary segment 

reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Number Amount Number Amount

3 Share capital

Authorised 

Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each 12,50,000             125.00               12,50,000          125.00              

Preference shares : 

Series A compulsory convertible preference shares of ₹ 10 each 60,00,000             600.00               60,00,000          600.00              

Series B compulsory convertible preference shares of ₹ 10 each 10,00,000             100.00               10,00,000          100.00              

82,50,000             825.00               82,50,000          825.00              

Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

Equity shares of  ₹ 10 each, fully paid up 4,12,661               41.27                 4,12,661            41.27                

Total 4,12,661               41.27                 4,12,661            41.27                

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Amount Number Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,12,661               41.27                 4,12,661            41.27                

Issued during the year -                        -                     -                    -                    

Outstanding at the end of the year 4,12,661               41.27                 4,12,661            41.27                

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of  the shareholder Number of 

Shares

% of holding in 

the class 

Number of 

Shares

% of holding in 

the class 

Murgency Global Services Private Limited                   46,758 11.33                        -   -                    

Acumen Fund Inc. 89,944                  21.80 1,34,916            32.69

Mather and Co Private Limited 56,625                  13.72 56,625               13.72

Neeta Sacheti 40,000                  9.69 40,000               9.69

Global Medical Response of India Limited 44,184                  10.71 44,184               10.71

Richa Jain 48,538                  11.76 24,626               5.97

Naresh Jain 100                       0.03 24,012               5.82

Grand Global Impex Pte. Limited 22,550                  5.46 22,550               5.46

d) Shareholding of promoters:

As at 31 March 2023

Name of the promoters
No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year
% held

No. of shares at 

the end of the 

year

% held
% change 

during the year

Murgency Global Services Private Limited                                 -                             -                  46,758 11.33% 11.33%

Mather & Co. Private Limited                         56,625 13.72%                56,625 13.72%                       -   

Chandra Sacheti                                                                   12,195 2.96%                12,195 2.96%                       -   

Neeta Sacheti                         40,000 9.69%                40,000 9.69%                       -   

Naresh Jain                         24,012 5.82%                     100 0.03% 5.79%

Grand Global Impex Pte. Limited                         22,550 5.46%                22,550 5.46%                       -   

Richa Jain                                                                   24,626 5.97%                48,538 11.76% -5.79%

Empee Holding Limited                         15,000 3.63%                15,000 3.63%                       -   

Nisha Purshothaman                                                            12,700 3.08%                12,700 3.08%                       -   

Mangal Laxmi Consultants Private Limited                         11,250 2.73%                11,250 2.73%                       -   

Ravi Krishna                           5,889 1.43%                  5,889 1.43%                       -   

Manish Sacheti                              200 0.05%                     200 0.05%                       -   

Shaffi Mather                              100 0.02%                     100 0.02%                       -   

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the 

year ended 

31 March 2023

As at  31 March 2022

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share held. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at  31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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As at 31 March 2022

Name of the promoters
No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year
% held

No. of shares at 

the end of the 

year

% held
% change 

during the year

Mather & Co. Private Limited                         56,625 13.72%                56,625 13.72%                       -   

Chandra Sacheti                                                                   52,195 12.65%                12,195 2.96% -9.69%

Neeta Sacheti                                 -                             -                  40,000 9.69% 9.69%

Naresh Jain                         24,012 5.82%                24,012 5.82%                       -   

Grand Global Impex Pte. Limited                         22,550 5.46%                22,550 5.46%                       -   

Richa Jain                                                                   24,626 5.97%                24,626 5.97%                       -   

Empee Holding Limited                         15,000 3.63%                15,000 3.63%                       -   

Nisha Purshothaman                                                            12,700 3.08%                12,700 3.08%                       -   

Mangal Laxmi Consultants Private Limited                         11,250 2.73%                11,250 2.73%                       -   

Ravi Krishna                           5,889 1.43%                  5,889 1.43%                       -   

Manish Sacheti                              200 0.05%                     200 0.05%                       -   

Shaffi Mather                              100 0.02%                     100 0.02%                       -   

e) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the

period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

- Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares - Nil
- Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash - Nil
- Equity shares bought back by the Company - Nil
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

4 Reserves and surplus

(a) Securities Premium 2,359.76                 2,359.77                     

(b) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Opening balance 11,203.04               7,579.53                     

Add: Net profit for the year 1,335.30                 3,623.52                     

Closing balance 12,538.35               11,203.04                   

Total reserves and surplus 14,898.11               13,562.81                   

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

5 Long-term borrowings

Secured

Term loans 

- from banks [Refer note 5.1 (a)] 271.16                   -                         269.33                    -                             

- from other parties [Refer note 5.1(b)] 811.75                   -                         307.12                    -                             

1,525.01                -                         927.32                    -                             

Total 2,607.92                -                         1,503.77                 -                             

Less: 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 8) (239.32)                  -                         (112.34)                   -                             

Current maturities of finance lease obligations (Refer note 10) (521.18)                  -                         (328.75)                   -                             

Total long-term borrowings 1,847.42                -                         1,062.68                 -                             

5.1 Terms of repayment and details of security

Secured Loans

(a) Term loan from banks

(b) Term loan from other parties

(c) Finance lease obligation

As at As at

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

6 Other long-term liabilities 

Security deposits 54.00 222.38

Total other long-term liabilities 54.00 222.38

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

7 Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 34)

Provision for gratuity 1,241.07                170.28                   1,652.12                 235.48                        

Provision for leave entitlement -                         604.11                   -                          887.34                        
Total provisions 1,241.07                774.39                   1,652.12                 1,122.82                     

As at As at

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

8 Short-term borrowings

Secured 

- Cash credit facilities from banks (Refer note 8.1 below) 484.09                    495.66                        

- Current portion of long-term borrowings (Refer note 5) 239.32                    112.34                        

Total Short-term borrowings 723.41                    608.00                        

8.1 Terms of repayment and details of security

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Finance lease obligations [Refer note 5.1(c)]

Obligations under finance lease carry interest rates ranging from 10.95 % to 13.00% p.a. (31 March 2022: 10.95% to 13.00% p.a.) and the balance amounts are
repayable in 4 to 42 monthly installments. These obligations are secured against vehicles, computers and office equipment purchased under finance lease. [Also
refer note 38(b)].

Term loans from banks carry interest rates ranging from 10.50% to 11.00% p.a. (31 March 2022: 10.50%) and the balance amounts are repayable in 28 to 47
monthly installments. These loans are secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles procured from these loans.

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Term loans from other parties carry interest rates ranging from 10.25 % to 13.50% p.a. (31 March 2022: 10.95% to 13.50% p.a.) and the balance amounts are
repayable in 7 to 54  monthly installments. These loans are secured by way of hypothecation of the Company's vehicle procured from these loans.

Cash credit facilities carry interest rates ranging from 9.80% to 11.15% p.a. (31 March 2022: 9.80% to 13.15% p.a.) and are secured by way of hypothecation of
the Company's trade receivables, unencumbered Property, plant and equipment and collateral securities of personal assets promoters and their relatives. The
cash credits are repayable on demand.
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

8.2

Year ended 31 March 2023

 June 2022 Trade Receivables*                  7,231.67                  7,223.00           8.67 

Invetories                     228.00                     228.00               -   

Other current 
assets

                 2,657.00                  2,657.00               -   

 March 2023 Trade Receivables*                  4,829.67                  5,195.00      (365.33)

Invetories                     173.00                     173.00               -   

Other current
assets

                 1,637.16                  2,656.15   (1,018.99)

Year ended 31 March 2022

Trade Receivables*                  5,442.00                  5,538.00        (96.00)

Invetories                     245.00                     245.00               -   

Other current 
assets

                 6,216.00                  6,216.00               -   

Trade Receivables*                  7,525.00                  7,525.00               -   

Invetories                     273.00                     273.00               -   

Other current
assets

                 5,527.00                  6,776.00   (1,249.00)

Inventory                     175.75                     190.00        (14.25)

Trade Receivables*                  7,556.96                  7,704.00      (147.04)

Other current
assets

                 1,830.79                  1,841.00        (10.21)

As at As at

9 Trade payables  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

 - total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises ('MSME')                          5.02                                 -   

 - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprises                   1,505.15                      2,406.73 

Total Trade Payables                   1,510.17                      2,406.73 

9.1 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises to the extent information available with the Company is given below:

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of year -                          -                             

-  Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 5.02                        -                             

- Interest due -                          -                             

-                          -                             

-                          -                             

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year -                          -                             

-                          -                             

The difference is due to the submissions
being made basis provisional financial
information prior to the Company's financial
reporting closure process.

Disclosure pursuant to the requirement as specified under Para 6(Y)(vii) of  General Instructions for Preparation of Balance Sheet of Schedule III to the Act.

 December 2021 The difference is due to the submissions
being made basis provisional financial
information prior to the Company's financial
reporting closure process

Reason for material variancesDifference

 Amount reported 

in the quarterly 

return/ statement 

Amount as per 

books of accounts
Particulars

Reason for material variances

The difference is due to the submissions
being made basis provisional financial
information prior to the Company's financial
reporting closure process.

Quarter ended  Particulars 
 Amount as per 

books of accounts 

 Amount reported 

in the quarterly 

return/ statement 

Difference

Quarter ended

(*) Trade receivables considered for this statement are only where the ageing is less than 6 months pursuant to agreement entered with the banks.

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

 March 2022 The difference is due to the submissions
being made basis provisional financial
information prior to the Company's financial
reporting closure process

 September 2021 The difference is due to the submissions
being made basis provisional financial
information prior to the Company's financial
reporting closure process
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

9.2 Trade payables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2023

(i) MSME -                         5.02                       -                         -           -                          5.02                            

(ii) Others 490.71                   719.01                   223.12                           64.74 7.57                        1,505.15                     

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                         -                         -                         -           -                          -                             

(iv) Disputed dues - others -                         -                         -                         -           -                          -                             

Total 490.71                   724.03                   223.12                   64.74        7.57                        1,510.17                     

As at 31 March 2022

(i) MSME -                         -                         -                         -           -                          -                             

(ii) Others 570.8 1,437.58                75.05                           323.30 -                          2,406.73                     

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                         -                         -                         -           -                          -                             

(iv) Disputed dues - others -                         -                         -                         -           -                          -                             

Total 570.80                   1,437.58                75.05                     323.30      -                          2,406.73                     

As at As at

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

10 Other current liabilities

Current maturities of finance lease obligations (Refer note 5) 521.18                    328.75                        

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 13.41                      2.21                            

Liability for capital goods -                          151.60                        

Employee related dues 3,299.57                 2,328.23                     

Statutory dues payable 525.71                    460.41                        

Deposits payable 558.34                    481.40                        

Advance received from customers 0.05                        39.00                          

Total other current liabilities 4,918.26                 3,791.60                     

Particulars

Total

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Outstanding from following period from the transaction date

Particulars

Outstanding from following period from the transaction date
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13 Non-current investments

  As at

31 March 2023 

  As at

31 March 2022 

(Valued at cost, fully paid up)

Trade Investment

Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services PTE. Limited (Refer note 37) 821.28 821.28                 

 1,723,560 (31 March 2022: 1,723,560) equity shares of SGD $ 1 each

Provision for impairment allowance (600.00)               -                       

221.28                821.28                 

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 30.00 30.00                    

300,000 (31 March 2022: 300,000) equity shares of  ₹ 10 each

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 1.00                    1.00                      

10,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares of  ₹ 10 each

Zenplus Private Limited 1.00                    -                       

10,000 (31 March 2022: Nil) equity shares of  ₹ 10 each

Total non-current investments 253.28                852.28                 

Details:

Aggregate of non-current investments:

(i) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value  thereof -                      -                       

(ii) Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 853.28                852.28                 

(iii) Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments 600.00                -                       

14 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets arising on account of:

- Expenses allowable on payment basis 648.29 718.93

- Timing difference on tangible and intangible assets 232.86 207.22

- Benefits arising on account of additional deduction in future years 56.06 135.59                 

Total deferred tax assets 937.21 1061.74

15 Loans and advances Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

Capital advances 521.58       -              179.89                -                       

-             1,108.25     1,699.34             -                       

Other receivables from related parties -             42.20          -                      19.80                    

153.67       -              1,471.60             -                       

Prepaid expenses 38.13         368.04        133.40                410.56                 
Advances to suppliers -             248.29        -                      316.08                 
Employee advances -             12.11          -                      56.41

Total loans and advances 713.38       1,778.89     3,484.23             802.85

Loans and advances 

- Secured, considered good -                             -                           -   -                       

- Unsecured, considered good 713.38       1,778.89     3,484.23             802.85                 

- Doubtful -                             -                           -   -                       

713.38       1,778.89     3,484.23             802.85                 

Note 15.1: Loan to related parties carry interest rate of 7.00% p.a. and are repayable on demand.

Note 15.2:  Disclosure under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

 As at  As at 

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

(a) Details of investments made are given in note 13 above

Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services PTE. Limited 821.28                821.28                 

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 30.00                  30.00                    

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 1.00                    1.00                      

Zenplus Private Limited 1.00                    -                       

Loans given to subsidiary during the year:

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 2,344.01             1,699.34              

Loan given to others during the year:

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 80.00                  -                       

The aforementioned loans have been given for the working capital purposes.

(c) Details of guarantees given by the Company -                      -                       

(d) Details of securities provided by the Company 

Loans to related parties

Advance tax and tax deducted at source
[net of tax provisions of ₹ 2,108.35 lakhs (31 March 2022 : ₹5,738.01 lakhs)]

(b) Details of loans given by the Company are as follows:

As at  31 March 2022As at  31 March 2023

The Company has provided an unconditional financial support, to its wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and 
Ambulance Services Pte. Limited, to meet its obligations and liabilities as they fall due. 

Investments in equity shares of wholly owned subsidiary (unquoted):

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 

31 March 2023

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16 Other non-current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 357.72                49.38                    

Interest accrued 10.47                  0.83                      

Security and other deposits 627.50                177.01                 

Balance with government authorities 21.56                  21.56                    

Total other non-current assets 1,017.25             248.78                 

 As at  As at 

17 Current investments  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

Unquoted

Investments in mutual funds

Investment in Mutual Funds (valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value): 

Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Option Nil (31 March 2022: 12,700.46)] -                      651.55                 

Nippon India Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan Nil (31 March 2022: 79,906.136 Units)] -                      88.71                    

Total current investments -                      740.26                 

Details:

Aggregate of current investments:

(i) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value  thereof -                      -                       

(ii) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments -                      740.26                 

(iii) Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments -                      -                       

18 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

 Consumables 173.00                175.75                 

Total inventories 173.00                175.75                 

19 Trade receivables

- Secured, considered good -                      -                       

- Unsecured, considered good 7,725.94             9,006.58              

- Doubtful -                      -                       

- Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -                      -                       

Total trade receivables 7,725.94             9,006.58              

Notes: 

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables ageing schedule

(c) As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Unbilled
Less Than 6 

months

6 months 

to 1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years Above 3 years Total

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 1,360.26 4,829.67      500.07       444.72       -              323.79                7,458.51              

Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -               -             -             -              -                      -                       

Disputed trade receivables - considered good -          -               -             1,071.34    556.35        -                      1,627.69              

Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -               -             -             -              -                      -                       

Total 1,360.26 4,829.67 500.07       1,516.06    556.35        323.79                9,086.20              

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Unbilled
Less Than 6 

months

6 months 

to 1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years Above 3 years Total

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 1,273.78 7,556.96      611.64       533.06       304.91        -                      10,280.35            

Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -               -             -             -              -                      -                       

Disputed trade receivables - considered good -          -               -             -             -              -                      -                       

Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -          -               -             -             -              -                      -                       

Total 1,273.78 7,556.96      611.64       533.06       304.91        -                      10,280.35            

^ In the absence of due date of payment, the ageing disclosure has been provided based on the date of transaction 

(d) Refer note 21 for details of unbilled revenue.

 As at  As at 

20 Cash and bank balances  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks - in current accounts 3,355.64             1,975.80              

Cash on hand 1.25                    3.34                      

3,356.89             1,979.14              

(b) Other bank balances

Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 5,003.16             2,071.56              

[held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantee and other commitments]

Total cash and bank balances 8,360.05             4,050.70              

21 Other current assets

Unbilled revenue 1,360.26             1,273.78              

Interest accrued 121.98                74.42                    

Insurance claim receivables 29.69                  460.78                 

Security and other deposits 125.23                21.81                    

Total other current assets 1,637.16             1,830.79              

Outstanding from following period from the date of transaction^

There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Company, either severally or jointly with any other person, or from any firms or
private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

Outstanding from following period from the date of transaction^
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

22 Revenue from operations 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sale of services 42,589.80           61,063.97          

Total revenue from operations 42,589.80           61,063.97          

23 Other income

Interest income

- on fixed deposits with banks 190.85                89.22                 

- on loans to related parties 114.99                96.91                 

- on income tax refund 51.96                  17.69                 

- on others 18.88                  -                     

376.68                203.82               

Provisions no longer required written back 94.18                  17.15                 

Gain on sale of mutual funds 17.64                  16.48                 

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 9.53                    6.29                   

Foreign exchange gain (net) 0.90                    0.37                   

Miscellaneous income 21.44                  6.94                   

Total other income 520.37                251.05               

24 Cost of services

Ambulance hire charges (Refer note 38) 4,197.70             13,781.26          

Ambulance fuel charges 9,432.97             12,579.51          

Ambulance repairs charges 2,264.24             2,353.91            

Medical consultancy charges 128.51                162.49               

Ambulance communication and tracking charges 150.17                267.94               

Medical supplies and consumables 233.77                437.26               

Ambulance insurance 378.81                544.00               

Referral charges -                      0.83                   

Total cost of services 16,786.17           30,127.20          

25 Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade at the beginning of the year -                      12.80                 

Stock-in-trade at the end of the year -                      -                     

Total decrease in inventory of stock-in-trade -                      12.80                 

26 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 15,922.47           20,048.99          

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 34) 1,462.49             1,939.62            

Leave entitlement (Refer note 34) 115.42                192.28               

Gratuity (Refer note 34) 418.79                584.54               

Staff welfare expenses 95.48                  87.87                 

Total employee benefits expense 18,014.65           22,853.30          

27 Finance costs

Interest expenses:

- on loans from bank 37.38                  25.47                 

- on loans from other parties 56.37                  37.54                 

- on delayed payment of statutory dues 130.14                0.64                   

  - on finance leased assets 186.54                146.30               

Other borrowing costs 183.64                149.84               

Total finance costs 594.07                359.79               

28 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on tangible assets (Refer note 11) 895.29                655.38               

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 11) 156.08                115.27               

Total depreciation and amortisation 1,051.37             770.65               

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

29 Other expenses

Advertisement and marketing expenses 175.15                224.07               

Travelling and conveyance 387.46                331.99               

Repairs and maintenance - others 360.41                218.04               

Legal and professional fees 948.04                984.85               

Directors' sitting fees 44.00                  48.50                 

Communication expenses 181.71                236.77               

Payment to auditor's (Refer Note 32) 34.13                  27.00                 

Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note 33) 79.07                  56.46                 

Rent [Refer note 38(a)] 195.12                184.93               

Rates and taxes 288.41                77.34                 

Electricity 74.35                  100.10               

Recruitment charges 18.53                  10.86                 

Printing and stationery 31.07                  95.88                 

Postage and courier 36.71                  45.51                 

Training expenses 39.44                  1.25                   

Bad debts written off 132.84                384.62               

Security charges 94.91                  147.32               

Miscellaneous 69.33                  56.31                 

Total other expenses 3,190.68             3,231.80            

30 Earnings per share ('EPS')

Basic and diluted EPS

A. Profit computation for basic earnings per share of ₹10 each

Net profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss available for equity
shareholders (₹ lakhs)

1,335.30             3,623.52            

B. Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS computation (Nos.) 4,12,661             4,12,661            

C. EPS  - Basic (in ₹) 323.58                878.09               

   - Diluted (in ₹) 323.58                878.09               

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(i) Contingent liabilities

a. Service tax matters pending in appeal 287.42                287.42

b. Bonus payable 191.37                191.37

c. Income tax matters pending in appeals                  - 619.1

d.

Note:

(ii) Other commitments

a. Capital Commitments (net of advances)                  690.70                 102.41 

b.

32 Payment to auditors

For statutory audit 33.59                   27.00                  

Reimbursement of expenses 0.54                     -                     

Total payment to auditors 34.13                   27.00                  

33 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure 

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Construction / acquisition of any asset : -                      -                     

(b) On purposes other than above:

- In cash -                      -                     

- Yet to be paid 79.07                   56.46                  

Total 79.07                   56.46                  

79.07                   56.46                  

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ₹ 79.07 lakhs (31 March 2022: ₹ 56.46 lakhs)
details of amount paid and yet to be paid is as given below:

Particulars

The Company has transferred above mentioned unspent amount to the Bank account specified in Section 135 to
the Companies Act, 2013 within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year of the expiry of the financial
year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. 

During the current year, the Company has spent ₹ 33.64 lakhs (31 March 2022 : ₹ 34.88 lakhs) out of unspent
amount for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022. Also refer note 35 for details of contribution to trust 
controlled by the Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Based on the judgment by the Honorable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is
not determinable at present, in view of uncertainty on the applicability of the judgment to the Company with respect
to timing and the components of its compensation structure. In absence of further clarification, the Company has
been legally advised to await further developments in this matter to reasonably assess the implications on its
financial statements, if any.

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above
pending resolution of the respective proceedings. Future cash outflows in respect of the above are determinable
only on receipt of judgments/ decisions pending with various forums/ authorities. The Company does not expect
any outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof.

The Company has given letter of continuing financial support to provide adequate unconditional financial support to
Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services Pte. Limited. so as to enable carry on its
operation as a going concern.

As per the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013; every year the Company is required to spend at least 2% of its
average net profit made during the immediately three preceding financial years on the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities. Following is the information regarding projects undertaken and expenses incurred
on CSR activities:
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34 In accordance with Accounting Standard 15 Employee Benefits, the requisite disclosures are as follows:

(i) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss during the year:

Current Service cost 402.69                 409.94

Interest cost on benefit obligation 124.04                 87.29

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised during the year (107.94)               87.31

Gratuity expenses included under employee benefits expense 418.79                 584.54                

(b) �Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Opening defined benefit obligation towards gratuity 1,887.60             1,394.41             

Interest cost 124.04                 87.29                  

Current service cost 402.69                 409.94                

Benefits paid (893.97)               (97.19)                

Liabilities transferred (1.07)                   (3.13)                  

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation (107.94)               96.28                  

Closing defined benefit obligation 1,411.35             1,887.60             

(c) Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,411.35             1,887.60

Less: fair value of plan assets - -

Net liability 1,411.35             1,887.60             

(d)  Actuarial assumptions as the balance sheet date are as under:

Discount rate as at year end 7.35% 6.26%

Mortality rate
 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) Urban 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
Ultimate

Salary escalation 5% 5%

Attrition rate 14% 14%

(e)

2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

Defined Benefit Obligation    1,411.35    1,887.60        1,394.51                  934.00                 560.48 

Plan Assets                -                  -                     -                            -                       0.35 

Net Deficit    1,411.35    1,887.60        1,394.51                  934.00                 560.13 

               -                  -                     -                       (0.37)                         -   

       (54.47)       141.67           200.86                    45.67                   26.34 

Leave Entitlement

(ii) Defined Contribution Plans

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The amount recognised as an expense for the defined contribution plans is as under: 

Contribution to Provident fund 1,045.30             1,388.65

Contribution to Employee State Insurance 410.85                 542.89

Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 6.34                     8.08

1,462.49             1,939.62             

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets gratuity on retirement at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The aforesaid liability
is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of the financial year in compliance with Accounting
Standard 15 Employee Benefits:

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as

at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

The amount of defined benefit obligation, plan assets, the deficit thereof and the experience adjustments on plan assets and
plan liabilities for the current and previous four years are as follows:

The amount of provision with respect to leave entitlement is ₹ 604.11 lakhs (31 March 2022: ₹ 887.34 lakhs) is presented as
current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However,
based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require
payment within the next 12 months. The expense recognised during the year towards leave encashment is ₹ 115.42 lakhs
(31 March 2022: ₹ 192.28 lakhs)

Particulars

Experience adjustments on plan assets

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

35 Related party disclosures

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship

(a)

Ziqitza Gulf Medical Response and Ambulance Service [Stepdown Subsidiary of ZSEAMRAS]

(b)

Shaffi Mather

Manjula Easwaran

Amitabh Jaipuria

Surendra Agarwal

(c) 

(i) Companies in which Key Management Personnel or their relatives have significant influence

       Ambulance Access for All (AAA) Foundation

       Kingdom Developers Private Limited

       City Heights India Private Limited

    KMI Mather

(B) Transaction during the year

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Remuneration to KMP (Refer note 1 below)

Amitabh Jaipuria -                    121.67                   

Surendra Agarwal 90.99                77.22                     

Manjula Easwaran 25.30                -                         

116.29              198.89                   

Other finance charges (Collateral fees)

KMI Mather 37.82                -                         

37.82                -                         

Investment in equity shares

Zenplus Private Limited (incorporated w.e.f. 15 July 2022) 1.00                  -                         

1.00                  -                         

Reimbursement of expenses

Ziqitza Gulf Medical Response and Ambulance Services 12.02                0.57                       

Amitabh Jaipuria -                    0.34                       

Surendra Agarwal -                    0.55                       

Shaffi Mather 33.13                -                         

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 23.74                -                         

68.89                1.46                       

Loans given

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited -                    1,000.00                

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 2,344.01           2,557.45                

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 80.00                -                         

2,424.01           3,557.45                

Other related parties

(ii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as 

at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Enterprise where control exists

Subsidiary

Father of KMP

Key Management Personnel (‘KMP’)

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 

Zenplus Private Limited (incorporated w.e.f. 15 July 2022)

Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services PTE. Limited ('ZSEAMRAS')

Director

Company Secretary 

Chief Executive Officer (resigned w.e.f. 28 February 

Chief Financial Officer (resigned w.e.f. 30 June 2023)

Particulars
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(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as 

at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Loans repaid

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited -                    1,000.00                

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 3,015.10           858.10                   

3,015.10           1,858.10                

Interest on loans given 

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited -                    31.45                     

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 114.90              65.46                     

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 0.09                  -                         

114.99              96.91                     

Security Deposit given

City Heights India Private Limited 500.00              -                         

500.00              -                         

Training Fees

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 26.09                -                         

26.09                -                         

Contribution for CSR expenditure

Ambulance Access for All (AAA) Foundation 31.87                12.00                     

31.87                12.00                     

C) Outstanding balances:

Loan given 

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 80.00                -                         

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited 1,028.25           1,699.34                

1,108.25           1,699.34                

Interest accrued on Loans given

Kingdom Developers Private Limited 0.09                  -                         

0.09                  -                         

Other payables

Shaffi Mather 18.46                -                         

KMI Mather 6.75                  -                         

25.21                -                         

Receivable from Subsidiaries

11.49                10.59                     

21.23                9.21                       

6.60                  -                         

2.88                  -                         

42.20                19.80                     

Security Deposit given

City Heights India Private Limited 500.00              -                         

500.00              -                         

Trade Payables

Ziqitza Brand Management Private Limited 49.83                -                         

49.83                -                         

Notes:

1

2

Med Care 365 Medical Services Private Limited

Zenplus Private Limited

Ziqitza South East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services Pte Ltd.

Ziqitza Gulf Medical Response and Ambulance Services

Further, the Company has given an unconditional financial support, to its wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Ziqitza South 
East Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services Pte. Limited, to meet its obligations and liabilities as they fall 
due.

Does not include the provisional liability for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for
the Company as a whole.
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36

37

38 Operating and Finance Lease

(b) Finance Lease 

MLP Present 

value of 

MLP

MLP Present 

value of 

MLPNot later than one year                     730.83 521.18                             458.88 328.75         
Later than one year but not later than 5 years                  1,293.97 1,000.54                          718.92 598.57         
Later than five years                         3.34 3.29                                        -   -               

                 2,028.14 1,525.01                       1,177.80 927.32         

39 Foreign currency exposure of the Company not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise

Foreign Currency 

in lakhs
₹ in lakhs

Foreign Currency 

in lakhs
₹ in lakhs

Dues from related parties USD 0.12 9.64 0.12 8.91

Dues from related parties SGD 0.02 1.85 0.03 1.68

Investment in subsidiary SGD 17.24 821.28 17.24 821.28

40 The Board of Directors of Company at its meeting held on 24 March 2023 has approved a Scheme of Arrangement between the Company 
and a wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Zenplus Private Limited , for the demerger of the entire business undertaking of the Company except for 
undertaking relating to the state of Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh along with assets and liabilities relating thereto on a going concern 
basis. The appointed date proposed in the Scheme is 1 April 2022. Pending the receipt of requisite approvals including shareholders of the 
Company and Mumbai Bench of National Company Law Tribunal, no adjustment is made in the Standalone Financial Statements as at and 
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the 

year ended 31 March 2023

(a) Operating Lease

The future minimum lease payments (‘MLP’) under finance leases is ₹ 2,028.14 lakhs (31 March 2022 ₹ 1,177.80 lakhs) 

The Company has taken various vehicles/residential/commercial premises on cancellable operating lease. These lease agreements are
normally renewed on expiry. Rental expenses in the Statement of profit and loss for the year include lease payments ₹ 4,392.82 lakhs (31 March
2022: ₹ 13,966.19 lakhs).

The Central Bureau of Investigation (‘CBI’) filed a charge sheet on 4 June 2018 at the CBI Special Court against the Company, two former
Directors and an ex-employee (together hereinafter referred as the ‘accused’) in connection with certain irregularities / investigations pertaining
to the tender, award and execution of the 108 Ambulance Services contract in the state of Rajasthan wherein it has been alleged that the
accused have caused a loss to the Government Exchequer by wrongfully claiming excess payments of ₹ 62.75 lakhs from National Rural Health
Mission (NHRM), Rajasthan. While it has been alleged that the accused have wrongly caused loss to the Government Exchequer aggregating
INR 62.75 lakhs, discharge application is pending hearing in the CBI Court. Further, the Company has received favorable award aggregating ₹

1,818.26 lakhs from the Committee for Settlement of Disputes which have been further upheld by Hon’ble Additional District Court, Jaipur.
Additionally, during the current year, the Company has also initiated arbitration proceedings under the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 for
settling additional claims aggregating to approximately ₹ 3,500 lakhs.

The Directorate of Enforcement (‘ED’) had alleged involvement in money laundering to the extent of ₹ 2,392.34 lakhs in earlier years and
therefore attached certain immovable property, fixed assets, fixed deposits with banks and immovable properties of certain promoters/ex-
directors under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 (‘PMLA’). Subsequently in September 2019, the Appellate Tribunal (under
PMLA), directed the attachments are liable to be secured only to the extent of ₹ 62.75 lakhs. The Company during the current year has
deposited a fixed deposit of ₹ 62.75 lakhs with the ED to secure the order as directed. Consequently, in the absence of filing of the original
complaint by ED or an appeal against the Appellant Tribunal order dated September 2019, the Company believes that there are no on-going
proceedings in respect of this matter.

The Company in January 2021 had received a notice of demand for ₹ 2,392.34 lakhs under Maharashtra Land Revenue Act for executing a
notice under Section 6 of the Rajasthan Public Debt Recovery Act (‘RPDR’). Tahsildar, Mumbai issued a Warrant of Attachment to execute the
above-mentioned notice and initiated attachment proceedings on the Company Office on 18 February 2021 against which the Company
preferred an appeal. However on 18 February 2021, Tahsildar Mumbai suo moto removed the attachment imposed by them on the Company
Office based on Additional Director (Recovery) Jaipur order dated 5 May 2021 (copy of order received by the Company during the current year),
concluding the appeal before of Additional Director (Recovery) Jaipur in favour of the Company.

The Company, as at 31 March 2023, has non-current investment amounting to ₹ 821.28 lakhs in its wholly owned subsidiary, Ziqitza South East
Asia Medical Response and Ambulance Services Pte. Limited (ZSEAMRAS'). The subsidiary has incurred losses in the current as well as
previous year and its consolidated net-worth as at 31 March 2023 has been fully eroded. ZSEAMRAS has further invested in its step-down
subsidiary i.e., Ziqitza Gulf Medical Response Ambulance Services (ZSGMRAS) whose networth has also been fully eroded. While the Company
is confident that adequate profitability will be achieved based on the business plans, the Management in view of the uncertainities has
considered an impairment allowance of ₹ 600 lakhs in respect of its exposure in ZSEAMRAS as at 31 March 2023 which has been presented as
exceptional item in these financials statements. 

Particulars

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Currency

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
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41 Disclosure of ratios

Particulars

Measure

(In times/

percentage)

As at and for the 

year ended 

31 March 2023

As at and for the 

year ended 

31 March 2022

a) Current ratio Times 2.48 2.09

b) Debt Equity ratio Times 0.21 0.15

c) Debt Service coverage ratio Times 3.78 6.36

d) Return on equity Percentage 8.94% 26.64%

e) Inventory turnover ratio Times N.A. N.A.
f) Trade receivable turnover ratio Times 5.09 7.53

g) Trade payable turnover ratio Times N.A. N.A.

h) Net capital turnover ratio Times 3.63 7.04

i) Net profit ratio Percentage 3.14% 5.93%

j) Return on capital employed (ROCE) Percentage 23.18% 28.59%

k) Return on investment (ROI) Percentage N.A. N.A.

Notes:

1) Debt = Long-term borrowings + Current borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings)+ Finance lease obligations  

2) Net worth = Paid-up share capital + Reserves created out of profit - Accumulated losses

3) EBITDA = Profit before finance costs, depreciation expense and tax expense

6) Working Capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

7) EBIT = Profit before interest and tax

8) Capital employed = Total equity + long-term borrowings

Disclosure of change in ratio by more than 25%

Particulars

% Variance in ratio 

between 31 March 

2023 and 31 March 

2022

a) Current Ratio 19%

b) Debt Equity Ratio 41%

c) Debt Service coverage Ratio -41%

d) Return on Equity -18%

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio N.A.

f) Trade receivable turnover ratio -32% Owing to decrease in revenue from operations during the year 

g) Trade Payable turnover ratio N.A.

h) Net Capital turnover ratio -48% Owing to decrease in revenue from operations during the year 

i) Net Profit Ratio -3%

j) Return on Capital Employed -5%

k) Return on Investment N.A.

Note: Since the change in ratio is less than 25%, no explanation is required to be disclosed.

Not applicable
Revenue from operations/ Average trade 

Not applicable

Revenue from operations / Working capital

Net profit for the year / Revenue from operation

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the 

year ended 31 March 2023

Formula for computation

Current assets / Current liabilities

Debt / Net worth

EBITDA / (Finance costs + Principal 
repayment of long term borrowings within one 
year)

N.A.

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Owing to decrease in EBITDA during the year 

Reason for Variance

5) Net purchase = Purchase of stock-in-trade + Cost of materials consumed + Closing inventory of raw materials and packing materials - 
Opening inventory of raw materials and packing materials

4) Cost of goods sold = Purchase of stock-in-trade + Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

N.A.

Refer note below

Refer note below

Owing to increase in borrowings during t

Refer note below

N.A.

Profit after tax / Net worth

EBIT / Capital employed

Not applicable

Refer note below
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited

(Amount in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

42 Expenditure in foreign currency

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

52.19                 11.51                           

-                     1.53                             

-                     1.26                             

52.19                 14.30                           

43 Other Statutory Information

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

a)

b)

vi)

a)

b)

vii)

viii)

ix)

x)

44

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information referred to in our audit report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants Ziqitza Health Care Limited

Firm Registration No: 001076N / N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Shaffi Mather Premkumar Varma

Partner Director Director

Membership No: 109632 DIN:00755637 DIN:06567952

Place: Dubai Place: Cochin

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

Narayana Kurup Asokan Manjula Easwaran

Director Company Secretary

DIN No: ACS No: A13858

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 August 2023

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on the current or previous financial 

Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to conform to current period's classification.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and 

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Legal and professional fees

Advertisement and marketing expenses

Rates and taxes

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the 

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
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Zenplus Pvt Ltd
Provisional Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at
31 March 2023

 As at
31 March 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds
Share capital 1 1,00,000                  -                       
Reserves and surplus 2 (3,86,749)                 -                       

-2,86,749                 -                       

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings -                           -                       
Other long-term liabilities -                           -                       
Long-term provisions -                           -                       

-                           -                       

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings -                           -                       
Trade payables -                       

-                           -                       
3 1,00,000                  -                       

    and small enterprises -                           -                       
Other current liabilities 2,86,749                  -                       
Short-term provisions -                           -                       

3,86,749                  -                       

Total 1,00,000                  -                       

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

- Property, plant and equipment -                           -                       
- Intangible assets -                           -                       

Capital work-in-progress -                           -                       
Non-current investments -                           -                       
Deferred tax assets -                           -                       
Long-term loans and advances -                           -                       
Other non-current assets -                           -                       

-                           -                       

Current assets
Current investments -                           -                       
Inventories -                           -                       
Trade receivables -                           -                       
Cash and bank balances 4 1,00,000                  -                       
Short-term loans and advances -                           -                       
Other current assets -                           -                       

1,00,000                  -                       

Total 1,00,000                  -                       

For Walker Chandiok and Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Manjula Easwaran Dipesh Shah
Partner Director Director
Membership No:109632 DIN: DIN:

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: Date: 

 - Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small 
 - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of             
Zenpplus Private Limited
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Zenplus Pvt Ltd

Revenue from operations -                           -                                   
Other income -                           -                                   
Total Income -                           -                                  

Expenses
Cost of services -                           -                                   
Purchase of stock-in-trade -                           -                                   
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade -                           -                                   
Employee benefits expense -                           -                                   
Finance costs -                           -                                   
Depreciation and amortisation expense -                           -                                   
Other expenses 5 3,86,749                   -                                   
Total expenses 3,86,749                  -                                  

Profit before tax (3,86,749)                 -                                  

Tax expenses/ (credit):
 - Current tax

-                           -                                  

Net profit for the year (3,86,749)                 -                                  

For Walker Chandiok and Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013 CIN:

Rakesh R. Agarwal Manjula Easwaran Dipesh Shah
Partner Director Director
Membership No:109632 DIN: DIN:

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: Date: 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of             
Zenpplus Private Limited

Particulars Note 
No

 Year ended
31 March 2023

Provisonal Standalone statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

 Year ended
31 March 2022
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Notes to Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2023
( Amt in Rs)

NOTE : 1 SHARE CAPITAL As at
31-Mar-23

AUTHORISED
100,000 Equity Shares of  Rs.10/- each 10,00,000     

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID-UP
10,000 Equity Shares of  Rs.10/- each 1,00,000       
Total 1,00,000

NOTE : 2 Surplus /(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year -                
Add  : Profit/(Loss) for the period (3,86,749)      
Total -3,86,749      

NOTE : 3 Short Term Provisions Amount
Provision for Expenses 1,00,000       
Total 1,00,000       

NOTE : 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents Amount
Balances with banks 1,00,000       
Total 1,00,000       

Note 5 Other Expenses Amount
Incorporation Expenses 33,431          
Auditors Remuneration 1,00,000       
Advertisement and Marketing Expenses 1,69,442       
NSDL Registration Charges 10,118          
Other Expenses 73,758          
Total 3,86,749       

Note 6 Current Liabilities
Amount payable to Holding Company - Related Party 286749
Total 286749

Zenplus Pvt Ltd
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited  
CIN – U85110MH2002PLC138005 
Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg,  
Dadar West Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra – 400013 
Tel No: ..................; Email: .................. 
 
 

PROXY FORM 
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014) 

 
Name of the Unsecured Creditor:         
Registered address :    
E-mail Id :    
 
I / We, being the unsecured creditor, hereby appoint 

 
1. Name:   E-mail Id:      

 Address:     
    Signature:    
  or failing him 

2. Name:   E-mail Id:      
 Address:     
    Signature:    
  or failing him 

3. Name:   E-mail Id:      
 Address:     
    Signature:    

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Meeting of the Unsecured 
Creditors of the Demerged Company, Ziqitza Health Care Limited, convened as per the directions of the 
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench to be held at Social Service League, 2R4Q+6G4, Jagannath 
Bhatankar Marg, Parel East, Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400012 on Thursday, October 19, 2023 at 6:00 P.M. and 
at any adjournment thereof in respect of the scheme as detailed in the Notice and to vote, for me/us in my/our 
name(s)___________________(here, if for, insert ‘FOR’ or if against, insert ‘AGAINST’) the arrangement embodied 
in the said Scheme as my/our proxy. 

 

 

 

Signed this day of 2023 
 
 
 
 

Signature of unsecured creditor ____________   Signature of Proxyholder(s) _______________ 
 

NOTES: 
1. This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 

Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed. 

3. Please affix Revenue Stamp before putting signature. 

4. Proxy need not be a creditor of the Company. 

5. In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted. 

Affix Rs. 1 
Revenue 
Stamp 
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Ziqitza Health Care Limited  
CIN – U85110MH2002PLC138005 
Registered Office: Sunshine Tower, 23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg,  
Dadar West Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra – 400013 
Tel No: ..................; Email: .................. 
 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be presented at the entrance) 

Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of Ziqitza Health Care Limited 

convened as per the directions of the National 
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench on October 19th 2023 (“Tribunal Convened Meeting”) 

on Thursday, October 19, 2023 at Social Service League, 2R4Q+6G4, Jagannath Bhatankar Marg, Parel 
East, Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400012 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

Name of the Unsecured Creditor Signature    
 

Name of the Proxyholder / Authorized Representative                      

Signature                                                          

I certify that I am an unsecured creditor/ proxy/ authorized representative of the unsecured creditor of the 
Company. I further declare that above particulars are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 
 
I hereby record my presence at the Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company, convened 
under the directions of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, vide order dated 27.07.2023 read 
with order dated 22.08.2023 passed in relation to Company Application No. CA (CAA) No.128/MB/23. 

IMPORTANT: 

1. Only Unsecured Creditors, Proxyholder or Authorized Representatives can attend the Tribunal Convened 
Meeting. Unsecured Creditor, proxy holder or the Authorized Representative attending this meeting must bring 
this attendance slip to the meeting and hand over at the entrance duly filled and signed. 

2. Unsecured Creditors, Proxyholder or Authorized Representatives should bring their copy of the Notice for 
reference at the meeting. 
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Route Map to the Venue  

Venue Details: Social Service League, 2R4Q+6G4, Jagannath Bhatankar Marg, Parel East, Parel, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra 400012 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 


